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CORPORATE PROFILE
LFE

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company” or “Sunny Optical
Technology’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) (Stock Code: 2382.HK) is a global
leading integrated optical components and products manufacturer. The Group is principally
engaged in the design, research and development (the “R&D”), manufacture and sales of
optical and optical-related products. Such products include optical components (such as
vehicle lens sets, optical parts of vehicle light detection and ranging (“LiDAR”), virtual reality
(“VR”) positioning lens sets, handset lens sets, glass spherical lenses for digital cameras
and other optical components) (the “Optical Components”), optoelectronic products (such
as vehicle modules, VR folded path (“Pancake”) modules, VR visual modules, handset
camera modules and other optoelectronic modules) (the “Optoelectronic Products”) and
optical instruments (such as intelligent inspection equipment and microscopes) (the “Optical
Instruments”). The Group focuses on the application fields of optoelectronic-related products,
such as vehicles, VR/augmented reality (“AR”), robots and handsets, which are combined with
optical, electronic, algorithm and mechanical technologies.
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Financial Summary
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MAIN FINANCIAL INDEXES IN 2022
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Financial Summary

R

(RMB million, except for earnings per share and key financial indicators)
(AREEET  SREFIREZHEERSGI)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFMBERE

Operating results E& ¥ 4&

For the year ended 31 December
BE+—A=t—HIFE

Consolidated

2019
—E—NF

Lo =r
= —=— \F

e
Revenue WA 33,196.9 37,496.9 38,001.8 37,848.7 25,931.9
Gross profit FEF| 6,605.0 8,736.2 8,697.9 7,750.7 4,913.1
Profit before tax Bx %4 Al 4 F) 2,714.9 5,634.9 5,642.9 4,550.4 2,851.3
Income tax expense PTSH X (240.8) (579.0) (702.6) (531.0) (338.6)
Profit for the year & T 2,474.1 5,055.9 4,940.3 4,019.4 2,512.7
Attributable to: 878 :
— Owners of the Company
VNN 2,407.8 4,988.0 4,871.8 3,991.3 2,490.9
— Non-controlling interests
AR = 66.3 67.9 68.5 28.1 21.8
2,474.1 5,055.9 4,940.3 4,019.4 2512.7
Earnings per share - basic (in RMB)
BREFN -EXR(AR¥ET) 2.20 4.57 4.46 3.65 2.28

Assets and liabilities EER & &

As at 31 December
R+-—HA=+—H

2022
—E_-—

2019
—Z—HF

ool oe
= —=— \F

Total assets BEALE 43,001.3 38,773.8 35,438.1 30,693.1 22,8521
Total liabilities & &4 20,818.9 17,878.5 18,612.0 17,966.9 13,564.0
Net assets EEFE 22,182.4 20,895.3 16,826.1 12,726.2 9,288.1
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

NN g 21,838.4 20,588.1 16,597.2 12,552.9 9,234.1
Non-controlling interests 3F#%2 A% 75 344.0 307.2 228.9 173.3 54.0
Total equity #ES 44 %E 22,182.4 20,895.3 16,826.1 12,726.2 9,288.1

Key financial indicators = E 8§ 15E

Return on equity (%) A%~ 25 5 (%)
Gearing ratio (%) B &L R (%)
Current ratio (times) R ENLE X (£3)

—_TE-NE | T \F

11.2 31.6 27.1
14.4 17.2 24.3
1.6 1.8 1.9

Note:
have been prepared on a consistent basis.

The above published results and the statement of assets and liabilities
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MISSION
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To explore the prosperous road
for the development of China’s
optoelectronic industry

=
VISION
g8 - K - EE
BRHEBTEN [BFEFR]
Be stronger, bigger and go further to

become a “Hundred-Year-Old Brand”
in the optoelectronic industry



EES
VALUE

B TStEANE ] B
ROMER

Taking “Create Together” as the
core value

LRBR

DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY

BETBER[BEA ] B -
&R B 2R ERE
Unswervingly implement the

“Mingpeijiao” ( BELA ) strategy
to build a world-renowned

optoelectronic enterprise



Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

Mr. Ye Liaoning
ERERLE
Chairman and Executive Director

FERATEE

Dear shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”),

The Company is pleased to present to the Shareholders the annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In 2022, with the significant slowdown in the global economic
activities, the dramatic change in economic landscape, the rise in
costs of energy, logistics and raw materials, the global inflation rate
reached the highest level in decades, and the downturn pressure on
the economy continued to increase. Moreover, the chip shortage,
the Russia-Ukraine conflict and the continuous recurrence of the
coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") posed greater challenges
to the recovery of the global economy. Due to the slagging end-
use consumption demand closely related to the global economy,
industry competition was increasingly intensified. Despite facing such
complicated and severe business environment, with the concerted
efforts of all employees, the Group surmounted the challenges, forged
ahead and continued to consolidate its overall competitive advantages
in the industry.
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During the year under review, the Group achieved relatively
satisfactory results in multiple major businesses. In the vehicle field,
with further increase of adoption rate of advanced driver assistance
systems (“ADAS”) and the continuous improvement in the levels of
autonomous driving, the global market share of the Group’s vehicle
lens sets continued to increase, further consolidating its industry-
leading position, and the Group secured designated projects for
vehicle modules from multiple well-known domestic and overseas
customers, making continuous breakthroughs in market exploration.
Meanwhile, the Group increased investments in R&D and market
promotion of new products, such as LiDAR, head-up display (‘HUD”)
and smart headlamp, laying a solid foundation for seizing the market
opportunity. In the VR/AR field, the Group actively leveraged on its
advantages in preliminary layouts to put into mass production of
VR Pancake modules in a industry-leading customer, achieved a
substantial increase in sales of VR visual modules in multiple global
top-tier customers and maintained close cooperation with famous
customers in AR optical waveguides. In the smartphone field, facing
the sluggish demand in the global smartphone market, the downgrade
in the specification of cameras, intensified industry competition and
other unfavorable conditions, the Group continued strengthening
the R&D of new products, enhancing product competitiveness,
improving the technological process, promoting production efficiency
and reducing manufacturing and procurement costs during the year
under review, and therefore, the Group could maintain its global No.
1 position in terms of the market shares of handset lens sets and
handset camera modules.

Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

The Group also attaches great importance to the sustainable
development in its pursuit of operational results. The Group believes
that the pursuit of sustainable development is crucial for an enterprise
to have the long-term viability and competitiveness in the market.
Therefore, the Group always adheres to the core value of “Create
Together”, and firmly performs its three major responsibilities in the
sustainable development, namely, social responsibility, environmental
responsibility and economic responsibility. During the year under
review, the Group continued to improve the management of the
environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”). In the governance
aspect, the Group has established a three-level ESG management
structure. Meanwhile, for the purpose of enhancing the diversity and
independence of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”,
each a “Director”) of the Company, the Group appointed a new
female independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2023. In
addition, the Group implemented comprehensive risk management
measures to further improve the compliance and internal control.
In the environmental aspect, the Group strives to achieve the goal
of reducing the intensity of greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions
by optimizing the energy structure and improving the efficiency of
resource use. In the social aspect, the Group always emphasizes
safety management, provides various trainings and development
opportunities for employees, and guarantees an equal, healthy and
safe working environment. In addition, in response to the “Dual Carbon
Goals” of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) and
the global climate-related targets and schemes, the Group is actively
committed to the “28e58” dual carbon goals of peaking its carbon
dioxide emissions by 2028 and achieving carbon neutrality by 2058.
Meanwhile, the Group has set the GHG emissions reduction target
as the performance target of its sustainability-linked bonds, namely
a reduction of Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions intensity by 20.0% by
the fiscal year of 2025 as compared to the baseline for the fiscal year
of 2021. Through these efforts, the Group’s sustainable development
capability is further improved.

The ESG report for the year ended 31 December 2022 of the Group is
available on the website of HKEXnews of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the website of the Group (www.sunnyoptical.com).
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Looking forward to 2023, the global economic environment will
remain complicated, high inflation and imbalanced supply chain may
continue, and there will still be many uncertainties in the international
landscape due to the trade frictions, the Russia-Ukraine conflict and
other factors. However, the gradual easing of the supply shortage
of automobile chips, the aggressive attitude of new energy vehicles
towards increasing the number and upgrading the specification
of cameras in a single vehicle, and the trend of “electrification,
networking, and intelligence” of automobiles will further promote the
vigorous development of ADAS, and the application demands of
vehicle cameras, LIDAR and other products will continue to increase,
with broad market potentials. Meanwhile, with the support of macro-
policy from top to bottom, the VR/AR industry has initially built an
ecosystem based on technological innovation, and it is entering the
window period of product upgrading and integrated application. In
the future, the industry will have a bright prospect for growth, and the
scale effect will continue to appear after the demand increases. The
proportion of visual modules in the hardware will continue to rise, and
the camera, as a key component of the industrial chain, will become
an important catalyst of the Group’s business growth. In addition, with
the increasingly stable pandemic and the expected gradual recovery
of consumption demand, as well as the continuous increase of
investment in cameras by smartphone brand manufacturers to improve
product performance, the Group’s smartphone related businesses
are expected to recover during the recovery of consumption demand.
In 20283, the Group will continue to unswervingly implement the
“Mingpeijiao” (% BCA) strategy, increase customer stickiness with
customer-oriented and fully leverage on its technological advantages
and patent advantages. The Group will also enhance technological
innovation to facilitate the development of China’s optoelectronic
products and contribute its own efforts to the industry prosperity and
technological progress.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

I would like to express my sincere appreciation to the Shareholders,
customers and business partners for their long-standing support
and recognition on behalf of the management team of the Company.
Meanwhile, | wish to express my deepest gratitude towards all the
staff for their professional dedication and unremitting efforts for a long
time. We will continue to strive for the sustainable development of
the businesses, so as to realise higher value for the Shareholders and
other stakeholders.

Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong
20 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW

Looking back to 2022, in the face of profound changes and a
pandemic both unseen in a century, and the turbulent geopolitical
environment, the global economy continued to decline. In China,
under the repeated impact of the sporadic and frequent outbreak of
the pandemic, international trade frictions and other factors, triple
pressures from shrinking demand, supply shock and weakening
expectation continued to evolve, which exacerbated the complexity,
severity and uncertainty of the economic development environment
and brought impacts on all walks of life to different extents.

In the automobile market, as a result of chip shortage, inflation and
the resurgence of the pandemic, etc, the global new vehicle sales
volume decreased by a single digit in 2022. However, the current
global automobile market is developing towards the direction
of “electrification, networking, and intelligence”, and under the
guidance of the Paris Agreement and China’s Dual Carbon Goals, the
development of new energy vehicles gradually speeds up. According
to the latest data issued by Clean Technica, the global sales volume
of new energy passenger vehicles exceeded 10,000,000 units in
2022, representing a substantial increase of approximately 55.2%
as compared to that of 2021. Meanwhile, intelligence is replacing
electrification to become the development direction of the automobile
market at the next phase, prominently manifested by the high-level
autonomous driving system equipped with advanced sensors, which
will directly drive the prosperous development of vehicle cameras,
especially sensing cameras. In addition to cameras, the market
demand for LIDAR, smart headlamp and HUD continued to grow as
the major downstream scenarios for these products were enriched
continuously, with broad market potentials in the future.

In the VR/AR market, although the operating activities of upstream and
downstream enterprises were impacted by the economic recession,
intensified competition and other factors during the year under review,
as the VR/AR industry landscape became gradually clear, the industry
entered into the strategic window period.
technologies and new scenarios” drives the VR/AR industry to advance
and usher in a new product cycle. The global shipment volume of
VR head-mounted display devices reached nearly 10,000,000 units
throughout the year, and the domestic market was at the leading
position in terms of the speed of product launch, equipment innovation
and product form. Meanwhile, the accelerated application of three
dimensional (the “3D”) visual technology in environmental perception
and somatosensory interaction further enriched the application
scenarios, which is also a catalyst for the VR/AR era, with broad and
promising market growth prospects.

“New products, new
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEmE DT

In the smartphone market, consumer’s low appetite for replacing new
smartphones, coupled with the saturated smartphone penetration,
the continued weak demand for new devices further brought the
global shipment volume of smartphones to the bottom, with the trend
of upgrading specifications at a standstill. According to the latest
report issued by International Data Corporation (IDC”), a market
analyst firm, the global shipment volume of smartphones in 2022
was approximately 1,210,000,000 units, representing a decrease
of approximately 11.3% as compared to that of last year. In such
a market environment, the major smartphone brand manufacturers
paid close attention to market dynamics, timely adjusted annual
expectations and enhanced control of channel inventory, which
brought up extremely intense competition between brands. However,
in order to achieve the strategic goal of enhancing the long-
term competitiveness of their products, in this cold winter of the
smartphone market, the major smartphone brand manufacturers were
still trying every single means to innovate cameras, one of the key
components, in their flagship models, to create a better photography
experience.

In the optical instrument market, despite the impact of the
macroeconomic downturn, under the general trend of the further
development of the intelligent factory and smart medical field, the
“localization replacement” in the scientific research field and with
the support of national industrial policies, relevant high-end optical
instruments ushered in new development opportunities, with very
broad market potentials.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, facing the rapid-changing political and
economic landscapes, the impact of the normalized pandemic and
fierce competition in the market, the Group consolidated its leading
position in the industry through the following efforts:

1. Strengthened and expanded the existing advantageous
businesses, and further increased the market share;

2. Continued to enhance investments in new businesses and took
over strategic control points in the industry;

3. Improved refined management and devoted to continuously
improving the operational quality; and

4. Further deepened human resource development and corporate
culture building of the Group.

‘ 12 ) Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPTICAL COMPONENTS

In terms of the vehicle lens sets business, with the gradual easing of
the chip shortage in the supply chain, the further increase of adoption
rate of ADAS and the gradual increase in the level of autonomous
driving, the shipment volume of vehicle lens sets of the Group
increased by approximately 16.1% to approximately 78,909,000
units during the year under review as compared to that of last year.
The global market share of the Group was still ahead of others with
continuing growth, which further enlarged the gap between the
Group and the second player. In addition, the Group further achieved
technological breakthroughs in high resolution ADAS vehicle lens sets
and hybrid ADAS vehicle lens sets. During the year under review, by
solving the tricky problems that large size vehicle lens sets could be
loosening in high temperature and how to dissipate the water-mist
of vehicle lens sets, the Group has completed the R&D of 17-mega
pixel front-view vehicle lens sets, which could be used for level-4
autonomous driving. Meanwhile, the Group has completed the R&D
of 2-mega pixel hybrid ADAS vehicle lens sets, of which the technical
performance was recognized by renowned platform providers, and
for the first time, the road running certification of hybrid ADAS vehicle
lens sets and road running data collection on real vehicles have been
carried out.

In terms of the emerging vehicle business field, the Group continued
to speed up the R&D and market promotion of LIDAR, HUD, smart
headlamp and other new products and continuously deployed optical
sensing technologies and products for the continuous upgrading smart
driving system. In the LIiDAR aspect, the Group focused on optical
components and modules, and the number of newly added designated
projects increased quickly during the year under review. The Group
became the first enterprise in the world achieving mass production of
polygonal rotating prisms made of glass and had continuously added
value to the LIDAR manufacturers. In the HUD aspect, the Group
focused on the core optical engine — picture generation unit (“PGU”)
modules business, among which the self-developed diffuser achieved
a technological breakthrough with multiple mass production projects
obtained. In the smart headlamp aspect, the Group actively secured
the industry opportunities in smart headlamp applications. The Group
has completed the R&D of its first micro lens array and obtained a
designated project for 1-mega level pixel headlamp product.
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In terms of the emerging optical business, the Group continued
to explore the application of optics in VR/AR fields, keeping pace
with the development of key customers and advancing technology
deployment and business development. We have not only achieved
substantial progress in technology of various optical products but also
diversified customer distribution. During the year under review, the
Group has completed the R&D of hybrid see through (“See Through”)
lens sets with wide-angle, which could realize the interaction of reality
and virtual scenarios. Meanwhile, the binocular VR optical modules
have been commenced mass production, which further improved the
distortion and chromatism and greatly enhanced the display effect of
VR device.

For the handset lens sets business, the shipment volume of handset
lens sets of the Group decreased by approximately 17.2% to
approximately 1,192,629,000 units during the year under review as
compared to that of last year. The handset lens set market faced a
severe challenge due to the weak demand in the global smartphone
market and the further impact of the downgraded specification of
smartphone cameras. In the face of the severe industry challenges, the
Group acted quickly and took various measures to actively respond
to the market changes, firmly adhering to its product strategy of “Ding
Tian Li Di (JERIZH#B)”, i.e. increasing customer stickiness for high-
end products and gaining market share for low-end products, thus
maintaining its position as the global No. 1 in terms of market share
amidst severe industry competition. Meanwhile, the Group strived for
continuous breakthroughs in customization capabilities with respect
to customers’ demand and continued to strengthen its R&D and
engineering capabilities. During the year under review, the Group has
completed the R&D of the industry’s first prism-centered periscope
handset lens sets. In addition, the super tele-macro handset lens sets,
the industry’s first ultra-aperture handset lens sets, the periscope
handset lens sets with the largest image size in the industry, 1-inch
hybrid handset lens sets, 200-mega pixel ultra-thin handset lens sets,
160-mega pixel super definition handset lens sets for main cameras
and the industry’s thinnest handset lens sets for main cameras applied
to foldable smartphones have been commenced mass production.
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OPTOELECTRONIC PRODUCTS

In terms of the vehicle modules business, the Group continued
to cultivate the technical elements of its products deeply, solved
customers’ pain points and difficulties, delivered the high-value
products to the customers with high-quality, and provided the
customers with superior services. The layout of the comprehensive
product lines of vehicle modules was highly recognized by the market.
During the year under review, the Group has completed the R&D of
8-mega pixel ADAS vehicle modules using chip on board (“COB”)
technology and active defogging vehicle modules. Meanwhile, the
Group has commenced mass production of all series (including 1.7-
mega pixel, 2-mega pixel and 8-mega pixel) of ADAS vehicle modules
adapted to the platforms of Mobileye, NVIDIA and Horizon Robotics. In
addition, during the year under review, the Group has obtained seven
additional designated projects of 8-mega pixel ADAS vehicle modules.

In terms of VR/AR field, VR spatial positioning modules have
maintained high proportion of shipments to overseas clients all the
time. Meanwhile, the Group achieved a breakthrough in the domestic
market and the products supplied to the domestic customers have
been commenced small batch production. In addition, See Through
high pixel module products have been the first released in an industry-
leading customer. Gesture-recognition and eye-tracking related
module products have also been developed in accordance with the
requirements of customers, which are expected to be further applied
in new models.

In terms of sweeping robots field, the Group has commenced mass
production of wide-angle linear time of flight (“ToF”) camera modules
for industry-leading customers, which could realize the simultaneous
mapping and obstacle avoidance for the first time. At the same time,
the Group has also commenced mass production of self-developed
linear structured-light camera modules for industry-leading customers.
In terms of service robots field, the Group has commenced mass
production of modular camera based on ToF for industry-leading
customers, which could achieve the application in obstacle avoidance
of the service robot for the first time.

BEEERWED T

REER

FEHEAEBHE  ASEFEFHERR
W2 MARFHILBEAERE  BaEE
WERSZEEXNAEF  TAREFPRHEES
R - BHEATEZERGR LELNHRERT
MHEHNRERY - REEFA - AEEDEMK
FRAR LR % (TCcoB)) Kitf800& &=
ADASE#IEMH Rk X BN B SR AN o
FES - A Mobileye * HEE R FHRTER
2R (BFE1708% % - 20085 x=K8008
BER)ADASEHBEEEREE - L5 - 8008
& ZADAS B & 18 48 7 2] B8 4 P9 T 18+ E 2h
BH -

FEVR/ARSES, © VRZE [ E AL R BT /BINE P i
MEEME—BEEFSM  REEEATSD
BERW  HEAZREATPNERDEA
L EAE o ) - See Throughm &R =E4A
EnE—2T¥BRET,LPAEIEREM  F
LA MEBIGEHAERNEAERTEREE
PEREITHE  BETHRIAPFI@E—F
B FE A& 1D

RS AES  ARECABELTEFEE
EARUERTER ([ToF]) M&EKRE - BRE
Bl AR S R2EMBENER - R -
AEBEBTHENGEBIREGREDDEE
MRITHRBREP - ERBHIZ AR - AEHE
MERTOFMRIBAKERERBGEEIALE
RREER YOEEARTERANETP -

BERERE (£E) BRAF » 2022 £ (15 )



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEmE DT

In terms of the handset camera modules business, continuously
affected by the weak demand in the global smartphone market and
downgraded specification of smartphone cameras, the shipment
volume growth and the product mix upgrade of handset camera
modules of the Group were both under pressure. During the year
under review, the shipment volume of handset camera modules of the
Group amounted to approximately 516,639,000 units, representing
a decrease of approximately 23.3% as compared to that of last
year. In the complex market environment, the Group has continued
to strengthen its business cooperation with international customers,
further enhanced its vertical integration capabilities, strived to improve
the management and operational efficiency of overseas factories
despite the restrictions of Entry-Exit of factory’s managerial and
technical personnel due to domestic pandemic control, and maintained
its global No. 1 position in terms of market share amid fierce market
competition through measures such as expanding revenue sources
and reducing expenditure, reducing costs while increasing efficiency.
During the year under review, the Group has completed the R&D of
the industry’s first prism-centered periscope handset camera module.
At the same time, the periscope handset camera modules with the
largest image size in the industry, 1-inch handset camera modules
with optical image stabilization (“OIS”), 160-mega pixel super definition
handset camera modules for main cameras and the industry’s thinnest
handset camera modules for main cameras applied to foldable phones
have been commenced mass production.

OPTICAL INSTRUMENTS

In terms of the intelligent equipment business, in order to seize the
market opportunities in the industrial field brought by the development
of the manufacturing industry towards “high-end, intelligent and
automation” trend, the Group has successfully completed the R&D
of vehicle module automatic production line during the year under
review, which could be applied to various production processes of the
vehicle modules, including automatic alignment and assembly of lens
sets and sensors, and the testing of semi-finished and finished vehicle
modules. These production lines could save manual procedures and
significantly improve production efficiency, which is at the leading level
in the industry. In addition, the customers have applied the Group’s
self-developed integrated testing lines in batches for handset lens sets
in their manufacturing plants. These production lines could achieve
automatic pick-and-place, automatic circulation and automatic testing
for handset lens sets, with the leading position in overall efficiency and
technics in the industry.
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In terms of the microscope business, the Group has made further
breakthroughs in the R&D and innovation. During the year under
review, the Group has completed the development of the first
domestic 45mm parfocal super apochromatic (“SAPQO”) series 100X
oil-immersion objectives, which could achieve high-resolution and
high-precision imaging in the scientific research field. So far, the Group
has achieved the full localization of the SAPO series objectives, among
which the Group has received bulk orders for SAPO10X, SAPO20X,
SAPO40X and SAPOG60X, and is capable of mass-producing
SAPO100X, effectively enhancing the Group’s core competitiveness in
the high-end microscopic system field.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue was
approximately RMB33,196.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 11.5% as compared to that of last year. The decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in the revenue of
handset lens sets and handset camera modules of the Group as a
result of the weak demand in the smartphone market and a trend of
downgrading specification on the smartphone cameras, which brought
by the factors such as the resurgence of the pandemic, chip shortage,
Russian-Ukrainian conflict, inflation and the uncertainties in the global
economy.
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Revenue generated from the Optical Components business segment
was approximately RMB9,467.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 7.9% as compared to that of last year. The increase
in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase of revenue of the
vehicle lens sets with the gradual easing of the chip shortage in the
supply chain. Meanwhile, the revenue related to the optical parts of
vehicle LIDAR and HUD increased significantly as the projects have
been gradually commenced mass production. In addition, benefiting
from the diversified layout of the product mix and customer portfolio,
the revenue related with the VR optical products also achieved great
increase. The increase in revenue from these businesses offset the
decrease in revenue of handset lens sets.

Revenue generated from the Optoelectronic Products business
segment was approximately RMB23,325.8 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 17.7% as compared to that of last year.
The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease of
shipment volume of handset camera modules, which was affected by
the weak demand of smartphone market.

Revenue generated from the Optical Instruments business segment
was approximately RMB403.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 4.2% as compared to that of last year. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in the market demand
for optical instruments applied to domestic industrial and medical
fields and the increase in the demand for overall overseas market.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately RMB6,605.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 24.4% as compared to that of last year. The gross
profit margin was approximately 19.9%, which was approximately 3.4
percentage points lower than that of last year.

The gross profit margins of Optical Components business segment,
Optoelectronic Products business segment and Optical Instruments
business segment were approximately 33.4%, 10.7% and 42.0%,
respectively (2021: approximately 39.5%, 13.7% and 45.1%
respectively).
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were approximately RMB352.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 28.7% as compared to
that of last year. It accounted for approximately 1.1% of the Group’s
revenue during the year, as compared to approximately 0.7% of last
year. The increase in absolute amount was attributable to the increase
in the headcount and remuneration of sales staff.

R&D Expenditure

The R&D expenditure of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately RMB2,803.4 million, representing an increase
of approximately 6.1% as compared to that of last year. It accounted
for approximately 8.4% of the Group’s revenue during the year, as
compared to approximately 7.0% of last year. The increase in absolute
amount was attributable to the Group’s continuous upgrading for
existing businesses and the increase in R&D expenditure on the
products related to the emerging fields like vehicle, VR/AR, etc.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 were approximately RMB928.6 million, representing
an increase of approximately 22.6% as compared to that of last year.
It accounted for approximately 2.8% of the Group’s revenue during the
year, as compared to approximately 2.0% of last year. The increase in
absolute amount was attributable to the increase in the remuneration
of administrative staff, and the increase in expenses related to the
grant of restricted shares (“Restricted Shares”) under the restricted
share award scheme of the Company (“Restricted Share Award
Scheme”) and the informationization construction.

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately RMB240.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 58.4% as compared to that of last year. The decrease
in absolute amount was mainly attributable to the decrease of profit
before tax. The Group’s effective tax rate was approximately 8.9%
during the year, as compared to approximately 10.3% of last year. For
more details related to the income tax expense, please refer to the
Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately RMB2,474.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 51.1% as compared to that of last year. The decrease
in net profit was primarily attributable to: (i) the factors such as the
resurgence of the pandemic, chip shortage, Russian-Ukrainian conflict,
inflation and the uncertainties in the global economy in the year of
2022, the smartphone market experienced weak demand and the
smartphone camera showed a trend of downgrading specification,
which resulted in the year-on-year decrease of the shipment volume
of handset lens sets and handset camera modules of the Group, with
high pressure on average selling prices and gross profit margins; and
(i) the depreciation of the RMB in the year of 2022, which caused
an unrealized foreign exchange loss amounting to approximately
RMB353.3 million from the United States Dollar (*“USD”) 600.0 million
bonds issued by the Company on 23 January 2018, which was a non-
cash item.

The net profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately 7.5% (2021: approximately 13.5%).

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company and Basic Earnings per Share

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB2,407.8
million, representing a decrease of approximately 51.7% as compared
to that of last year.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022

was approximately RMB220.3 cents, representing a decrease of
approximately 51.8% as compared to that of last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Flows

The table below summarises the Group’s cash flows for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

Net cash from operating activities & & EE 1518 & %58
Net cash used in investing activities % & & E IR & %58
Net cash used in financing activities &84 /& B Ff IR & /% 58
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Funding and Financial Policy

The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash on hand and
net cash generated from operating activities. The Board expects that
the Group will rely on net cash generated from operating activities,
bank borrowings and debt financing in the short run to meet its
working capital and other requirements. In the long run, the Group
will be mainly funded by net cash from operating activities and, if
necessary, by additional bank borrowings, debt financing or equity
financing. There were no material changes in the funding and financial
policy of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB30,645.6 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB27,989.3 million); and current liabilities
of approximately RMB19,336.9 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB11,873.5 million). The Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.6 times (31 December 2021: approximately 2.4 times).
The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB43,001.3 million, representing an increase of approximately
10.9% as compared to that as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB7,033.2 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB5,605.2 million). The cash and cash equivalents were mainly
denominated in RMB and USD.

Operating Activities

Cash inflow from operating activities was mainly generated from
cash receipt from sales of the Group’s products. Cash outflow
from operating activities was mainly used for the purchases of raw
materials, selling and distribution expenses, R&D expenditure and
administrative expenses. Net cash from operating activities was
approximately RMB7,377.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 and net cash from operating activities was approximately
RMB6,979.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The trade receivables turnover days (average of the opening and
closing trade receivables balances/revenue x365 days) increased
from approximately 60 days for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately 66 days for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
increase in trade receivables turnover days was mainly attributable
to the fact that the revenue from those customers with longer credit
terms grew faster during the year of 2022.
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The trade payables and accrued purchases turnover days (average
of the opening and closing trade payable and accrued purchases
balances/cost of sales x365 days) decreased from approximately 83
days for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 78 days
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The decrease in the trade
payables and accrued purchases turnover days was mainly attributable
to the Group’s improved control on the procurement of raw materials.

The inventory turnover days (average of the opening and closing
inventory balances/cost of sales x365 days) decreased from
approximately 71 days for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately 70 days for the year ended 31 December 2022. There
was no significant difference in the number of inventory turnover days
in these two fiscal years.

Investing Activities

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a net
cash used in investing activities of approximately RMB3,833.9 million,
which mainly included purchases and release of unlisted financial
products of approximately RMB13,939.8 million and approximately
RMB11,908.5 million respectively, and capital expenditure amounting
to approximately RMB3,113.8 million.

Financing Activities

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a net
cash used in financing activities of approximately RMB2,159.2
million. The cash inflow mainly came from proceeds from new bank
borrowings raised of approximately RMB8,151.8 million. Major
outflows were the repayment of bank borrowings of approximately
RMB8,550.1 million and dividends paid to the Shareholders of
approximately RMB1,058.7 million.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s capital
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB3,113.8 million, which
was mainly used for the purchases of property, plant and equipment,
acquisition of land use right, payment for intangible assets and
purchase of other tangible assets. All of the capital expenditure was
financed by internal resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Indebtedness
Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately RMB2,020.0 million (2021: approximately RMB2,238.9
million). No bank borrowings were secured by certain buildings and
land of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings were denominated in
RMB, USD and Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD”).

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Bank facilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank facilities of RMB6,400.0
million with Agricultural Bank of China Limited, RMB3,000.0 million
with Ningbo Bank Co., Ltd., RMB2,400.0 million with The Export-
Import Bank of China, RMB1,670.0 million with Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, RMB600.0 million with China
Construction Bank Corporation, RMB380.0 million with of Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd., RMB2,515.0 million and USD115.0 million
with Bank of China Limited respectively, USD120.0 million with BNP
Paribas, USD110.117 million with The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, USD91.0 million with China Development
Bank, USD80.0 million with Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment
Bank, USD80.0 million with Standard Chartered Bank and USD75.0
million with Citibank.
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Debt securities

As at 31 December 2022, debt securities of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB4,178.1 million (2021: approximately RMB3,815.6
million). For details of bonds payable, please refer to Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio of approximately
14.4% refers to the ratio of total borrowings to total capital (total
capital being the sum of total liabilities and shareholders’ equity),
reflecting the Group’s financial position at a sound level.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees.

Financing and funding and treasury policies and objectives

The Group adopts prudent financing and funding and treasury policies.
The Group will seek bank borrowings and debt financing when its
operating demand grows, and will regularly review its bank borrowings
and debt securities to achieve a sound financial position.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any pledge or charge on assets as at
31 December 2022, except for the pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB9.8 million (2021: approximately RMB18.3 million).
For details of the pledged bank deposits, please refer to Note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the capital expenditure of the Group in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated financial statements amounted
to approximately RMB1,257.5 million (2021: approximately RMB684.4
million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no other capital
commitments save as disclosed above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not enter into any material
off-balance sheet transactions.

PERFORMANCE OF INVESTMENTS AND
FUTURE INVESTMENTS PLAN

The Group’s investing activities primarily include the purchase and
release of unlisted financial products, placement and release of short
term fixed deposits and purchase of property, plant and equipment.
The purchase and disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) include debt instruments, equity investments,
fund investments and unlisted financial products. Among them, the
fund investments are managed by relevant financial institutions, mainly
investing in debt securities linked to the performance of related senior
debts; unlisted financial products are managed by relevant banks
in China, mainly investing in certain financial assets such as bonds,
trusts and cash funds, and their investment incomes are determined
based on the performance of relevant government debt instruments
and treasury bills.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 14
November 2022 and 11 January 2023, Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co.,
Ltd. (“Sunny Zhejiang Optics”) has subscribed for registered capital
of RMB1,110.0 million by way of capital injection into Chongging Ant
Consumer Finance Co., Ltd., (the “Target Company”) in the sum
of RMB1,110.0 million (the “Subscription”), representing 6% equity
interests of the Target Company as enlarged by the capital increase.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there were no other significant
investments made by the Group except for the Subscription as
disclosed above for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Important Investments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group maintained a portfolio of unlisted
financial products with the total carrying amount of approximately
RMB10,086.4 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB7,992.2
million), of which approximately RMB3,407.7 million has been released
by the Group as disclosed in the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the
fair value of the unlisted financial products subscribed by the Group
in aggregate represented approximately 23.5% of the Group’s total
assets (31 December 2021:
costs for the unlisted financial products subscribed as at 31 December
2022 was approximately RMB10,007.6 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB7,992.2 million). For the year ended 31 December

approximately 20.6%). The investment

2022, the amount of investment income from the unlisted financial
products at FVTPL was approximately RMB197.5 million (2021:
approximately RMB302.6 million).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the major unlisted
financial products subscribed by the Group as at 31 December 2022
(in descending order):
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Percentage of fair

value of the unlisted

financial products

relative to the total

Fair value of the assets of the
unlisted financial Group as at
products as at | 31 December 2022

31 December 2022 R-B=Z
R=%== +=A=+-H
+=A=t-H FEHERERMN
Name of the unlisted financial products* Name of banks Investment costs | FLHE&BERMN ARELREE
FLTERERER RITER RERA DAE BEEMNEIL
RMB'000 AMB'000
AREFIT AEEFT

Bank of Ningbo NingXin fixed income 9-month periodic Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.
wealth management No. 2

ERBYEMET W R A F R RE 257 BERBIRHERAT 950,000 945,711 2.2%
Sunshine Jin Zhou Tian Li Zhen Xiang No. B0O1 China Everbright Bank Co.,

Ltd.
% & B HZZB0015H HEXARBIRNERAF 800,000 804,314 1.9%

Bank of Ningbo NingXin fixed income one-year fixed-term  Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

open-ended wealth management No. 16
ERBHEMET REE—FERRHEURH 165 BERBTRNERAT 800,000 799,912 1.9%
Bank of Ningbo NingXin fixed income six-month fixed-term  Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

open-ended wealth management No. 24
BRBHEMET REE+F T PRMAIEH 245 BERFTRINERAT 500,000 500,989 1.2%
Bank of Ningbo NingXin fixed income six-month fixed-term  Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

open-ended wealth management No. 1

ERENERETUEELF e BRRAEN 1% ERRITROBBRAT 495,000 499,785 1.2%
Others*
Hft# 6,462,600 6,535,704 15.1%
Total
@t 10,007,600 10,086,415 23.5%

The English names are unofficial English translations of unlisted financial * JREENRXEHHIE LT RMEMNEXEHE
products with Chinese names only. If there is any inconsistency, the RFEERE R - P E XA —50 BIBAH X
Chinese names shall prevail. BAE o

#  Other unlisted financial products included 44 unlisted financial products *  EM3FETERMERBFERTRTRIRITHA41R

with 7 different banks to lower the concentration risk. The fair value ELTMEMER  UBREEPRER - 244783
of such 44 unlisted financial products as at 31 December 2022 was rHERERN T _F+A=+—HKNRQ
approximately RMB148.5 million in average. REFHLARH148,500,0007T °

BELERHE (EE) BRAT « 2022 5 ( 27 ’



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEmE DT

The unlisted financial products was measured at fair value as at 31
December 2022. Such investment activities were funded primarily by
the idle self-owned funds of the Group.

The Board considers that the terms of such unlisted financial products
are on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders as a whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s investments
amounted to approximately RMB3,113.8 million, which was primarily
for the purchases of property, plant and equipment, acquisition
of land use right and the necessary equipment configurations for
new projects. These investments enhanced the Group’s R&D and
technological application capability and production efficiency, and thus
expanded the sources of revenue.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Going forward, the Group will continue to further diversify its
investments among different banks to lower the concentration risk and
will closely monitor the performance of investments made and future
investments plan in accordance with its prudent funding and treasury
policy to utilise and to increase the yield of the idle funds of the Group
while maintaining a high level of liquidity and a low level of risk. Such
investment activities were made and will be made on the premises
that it would not adversely affect the working capital of the Group or
the operation of the Group’s principal business. The Group intends to
make further investments to enhance its competitiveness in the future.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks arising from its bank
borrowings for working capital and capital expenditure that are
associated with the expansion of the Group and utilisation for other
purposes. The rising of interest rates increases the costs of both
existing and new debts. As at 31 December 2022, the effective
interest rate on fixed-rate bank borrowings was approximately 2.3% to
3.2% per annum, while the effective interest rate of variable-rate bank
borrowings was approximately 3.6% to 3.7% per annum.

Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Group exports a portion of its products to and purchases a
considerable amount of products from international markets where
transactions are denominated in USD or other foreign currencies.
For details of the Group’s foreign currency forward contracts and
foreign currency options contracts, please refer to Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. Except certain
investments which are in line with the Group’s business development
and which are denominated in foreign currencies, the Group did not
and has no plan to make any other foreign currency investment.

Credit Risk

The Group’s financial assets include derivative financial assets,
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, short-term
fixed deposits, time deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and
other receivables and prepayments, amount due from a related
party, receivables at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) and equity instruments at FVTOCI, which represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade receivables, the
management of the Company (the “Management”) has delegated a
team responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that appropriate follow-
up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. The Group has also

purchased insurance relating to trade receivables. In addition, the
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Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk was significantly reduced.
The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position are net of allowance for expected credit loss, estimated by
the Management based on prior experience and historically observed
default rates, their assessment of the current economic environment
and the discounted cash flows to be received in future.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk since its trade
receivables are dispersed over a large number of counterparties and
customers. The credit risk on liquidity is limited because the majority
of the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings by international
credit-rating agencies.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is primarily related to variable
rates applicable to bank borrowings. The Management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and variable rates and ensure they
are within reasonable range. Therefore, any future variations in interest
rates will not have any significant impact on the results of the Group.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate level
of cash and cash equivalents through continuously monitoring the
forecast and actual cash flows and matching them with the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINAL DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board proposed final
dividends of HKDO0.500 per share (equivalent to approximately
RMBO0.439 per share), with payout ratio of approximately 20.0% of
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company. The final
dividends payable on 28 June 2023 is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
to be held on 24 May 2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors consider sustainable returns to the Shareholders to be
one of the main objectives pursued by the Group. The basic policy
is to pay final dividends in each financial year. Retained profits are
effectively used by the Board to fund the future development of the
Group.

The Directors currently intend to recommend a distribution to all the

Shareholders in an amount representing approximately 20% to 30% of

the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company in respect

of each financial year by way of dividends. The recommendation for

dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board takes

into account the following factors when considering the declaration

and payment of dividends:

e the Company’s cash position and distributable reserves;

e the Group’s overall business condition;

e the Group’s financial results;

e the Group’s capital requirements;

e the interests of the Shareholders;

e applicable laws and regulations and the amended and restated
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of

Association”); and

e any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.
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Any dividend declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to
Shares on a per share basis and the Company will pay such dividend
in Hong Kong dollars. No dividend shall be declared in excess of the
amount recommended by the Board. Any final dividend for a fiscal
year will be subject to the approval by the Shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, no Shareholders have waived
or agreed to waive any dividends during the year ended 31 December
2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the eligibility for attending the AGM, which is to
be held on 24 May 2023, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 19 May 2023 to 24 May 2023, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2023.

In order to determine the eligibility for receiving the final dividends,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 1 June
2023 to 7 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares will be registered. All transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 31 May 2023.

62\) Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EAREHAB TR N IZEREESTIK - B
RABHABTIRNBERRE - MEROEE
TREBERAEETSEENEH - SMHFENT
IR BAR R RALE - TAMEER o

BEEMFEAN 2T -_—_F+-_A=1+—
BILFE @ BEREEREXR B RETAK

B o

oN

TEMERSELTFE

ARAEEAREER _E-_=FRA-tmHAS
THRFEFRE  ARAFH-_T_=FH
A+hBE-_ZE-_=FAA-+MH(BFEAE
BMX)EERERMBFERFE - BHH
“EPIREMRNDBEERL c FTBRGBFEX
HERBERE  VEARZZZ=FAHATAN
BTFER=+98 XEARAREBZE
FERDBRAEATABLFELBRRAFETE
o I AEBEFE2ERER183FAMA
DATIBATI2EA7T165R4 »

AN

= ARNA-HE-_Z-_=%AtBH (8%
BEEMX) EERERNBFELFE 4
HAgREBEERKROBEER - IERDIA
PXHERBHEERE  VEAR_T_=F1H
Z—+—HBTTFHER=1T58  XEARTRE
BELFBELDBREEPRESFEZLERAT
EITER  HILARBBEF 2R/ KNBR1835
BRABL7E17T12E17165F4 °



Management Discussion and Analysis

GLOBAL DEPLOYMENT
Production Bases

The Group’s production bases in China are located in Yuyao of
Zhejiang Province, Zhongshan of Guangdong Province, Shanghai and
Xinyang of Henan Province, respectively.

In order to promote its global production layout and satisfy the
demand of customers in overseas markets, the Group has established
production bases in India and Vietnam, which have already had
capabilities in mass production and quality control of products. During
the year, the Group has completed the phase two factory construction
of the production base in Vietnam.

R&D Centers

In order to have a timely insight into the industry opportunities and
cater to the customers for rapid R&D, the Group has set up R&D
centers in China, the U.S.A. and South Korea to provide more
international technical support and reserves for the R&D of optical and
optical-related products.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group had 26,610 full-time employees as at 31 December
2022. In line with the overall operation of the Company, the industry
level and the performance of individual employees, the Group has
established a fair and competitive emoluments and welfare system
to recruit new talents and to reward and retain existing talents, in
which the emoluments include annual basic salary, year-end bonus,
the economic-value-added bonus and share award, while the welfare
includes social insurance, housing provident fund, employee holidays
and emergency relief fund. The Group is committed to achieving the
goals of “consistency in responsibilities and interests, abilities and
values, risks and returns, performance and income” in remuneration
distribution.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEmE DT

The Group adopted the Restricted Share Award Scheme in 2010,
for the purposes of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants to recognise their contributions to the Group and to
enhance their ownership spirits. For the year ended 31 December
2022, 4,299,957 shares of the Company were granted to eligible
employees in accordance with the Restricted Share Award Scheme by
the Group.

PATENT BARRIER

The establishment and improvement of the patent system is an
important manifestation of the core capability of an enterprise. In
order to advance technological innovation, further improve the market
competitiveness and prevent operational risks effectively in intellectual
property rights, the Group has established a professional intellectual
property rights management team which has been actively formulating
strategies on corporate patents and establishing patent barrier.

During the year of 2022, Sunny Zhejiang Optics initiated 19
proceedings against defendants including AAC Optics (Changzhou)
Co., Ltd. and other companies for their infringement on the Group’s
intellectual property in handset lens sets in China. These proceedings
have been accepted by the Intermediate People’s Court of Ningbo,
Zhejiang Province, China during the year.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total 4,093 granted patents,
including 1,668 invention patents, 2,341 utility model patents and
84 exterior design patents. In addition, 3,991 patent applications are
pending for approval.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

AWARDS AND HONORS

During the year, the Group received numerous honors from customers,
external agencies and the capital market. These awards and honors
were recorded as follows:

Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Automotive
Optech”) was awarded the “Best Supplier Award” by Ficosa
International (Taicang) Co., Ltd.

Sunny Automotive Optech was awarded the “2022 Yuyao Municipal
People’s Government Quality Award” by the Yuyao Municipal People’s
Government

Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
SmartLead”) was awarded the “Quality Excellence Award” by Li Auto

Sunny SmartLead was awarded the “2022 Excellent Strategic Partner
Award” by Navinfo Co., Ltd.

Sunny SmartLead was awarded the “2022 Cooperation Award in
Quality” by Gac Toyota Motor Co., Ltd.

Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
Optical Intelligence (Yuyao)”) was awarded the “2023 Best Partner”
by ECOVACS Robotics Co., Ltd.

Sunny Optical Intelligence (Yuyao) was awarded the “2022 Zhejiang
Provincial Green Low-Carbon Factory” by the Economic and
Information Technology Department of Zhejiang Province

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “2021 excellent Quality
Award” and “2021 Best Innovation Award” by vivo Mobile
Communication Co., Ltd.

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded “Joint Technology Innovation
Award” by Honor Device Co., Ltd.

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “2021 Best Partner Award”
and “2021 Best Quality Award” by Kunshan QTech Microelectronics
Co., Ltd.

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Opotech”) was awarded
the “2021 Best Supplier Award” by Xiaomi Communications Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEmE DT

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “2021 Best Innovation Award” by
vivo Mobile Communication Co., Ltd.

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “Best Innovation Award” by OPPO
Guangdong Mobile Communication Co., Ltd.

Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Xinyang Optics”) was
awarded the “2021 Excellent Supplier”
Xiamen Co., Ltd.

by Panasonic Avc Networks

Sunny Optical Technology was awarded the “The Most Remarkable
Investor Relations Recognition — Hong Kong Index Constituents (Hang
Seng Index) Category” at “Quam IR Awards 2021”

Sunny Optical Technology was awarded the “Best Investor Relations
Award for Hong Kong Listed Companies” by Securities Times

Sunny Optical Technology ranked 46™ in the “2021 Hurun China 100
Most Sustainable Private Companies” list

Sunny Optical Technology was elected in the “2022 Forbes China
Sustainable Development Industrial Enterprises TOP 50 Selection”

Sunny Optical Technology won the “ESG Award” in “InnoESG Prize
2022” organized by SocietyNext Foundation

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE STRATEGIES

Looking forward to 2023, the Group will continue to face grave
challenges such as slow recovery of the global economy, weak
consumption demand and more intensified competition. However,
development direction of the global economy will not change, which
will stick to digital economy and green economy. This will bring new
growth potentials and development opportunities to the optoelectronic
industry. The rapid development of autonomous driving will promote
the adoption of multi-sensor and huge market potentials will appear in
VR/AR,
will continue to be a year of challenges and opportunities. The Group

robotic vision and other emerging industries. As such, 2023
will also explore and seize new opportunities in the markets based

on the following three principles, so as to achieve the sustainable
business development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Tapping new potential in mature businesses

e Potential of new customers — follow target major customers
closely and satisfy their demands so as to rapidly increase our
supply proportion and become an important supplier; and

e Potential of product mix — the proportion of high-end and
high-value products still has room for improvement.

Seeking new opportunities in emerging industries

e While the number and specification of vehicles cameras
are improving quickly, the Group continues to strengthen
its competitiveness in the vehicle lens sets business and
build brand products in this category; the Group will also
increase its investment in vehicle modules business and grasp
opportunities to quickly expand its market share, aiming to be
an irreplaceable supplier in vehicle camera field; and

e In vehicle LIDAR, HUD, VR/AR, robotic vision and other
emerging fields, in addition to basic optical components,
the Group will constantly improve its product portfolio and
enhance added value to its products and its competitiveness
in the industry.

Focusing on quality while expanding the volume

e Continue to improve operational efficiency and quality and
further increase its capacity utilization rate;

e Further increase product quality, working efficiency and vyield
rate; and

e Continuously reduce product cost per unit and loss rate.

Looking forward, the Group will stick to its strategic position,
continue to be innovation-driven, enhance the awareness of crisis,
expand revenue sources and reduce costs thoroughly and further
deepen the construction of sustainable development capability
to constantly enhance its comprehensive competitiveness,
provide more quality products and services to top global
high-tech enterprises, advance the corporate growth and
value improvement, and continuously create more returns to
Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 January 2023, the Subscription was completed and Sunny
Zhejiang Optics had 6% of equity interests of the Target Company
immediately after such completion.

On 17 January 2023, the Company successfully issued
USD400,000,000 5.95% per annum sustainability-linked bonds, which
will be due on 17 July 2026.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other important events
affecting the Group which have occurred since 31 December 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the publication date of this annual report, the Board consisted
of eight Directors comprising three executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors. The
information on the Directors is set forth below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning (33 %), aged 57, is one of the founders of the Group,
and currently is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and
the chairman of strategy and development committee (“Strategy and
Development Committee”) of the Company. He is responsible for
formulating the Group’s policies and making decisions. Mr. Ye joined
Yuyao County Chengbei Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 and
became its deputy general manager since 1995. Mr. Ye has obtained
a qualification of senior economist issued by the Personnel Bureau of
Zhejiang in 2008. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the
PRC and is generally granted to a person who has passed necessary
examinations and has acquired substantial management experience.
Mr. Ye obtained a diploma from Zhejiang Radio & TV University in
1999. Mr. Ye has been an executive Director since May 2007 and
is currently a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ye
was awarded the title of “Outstanding Entrepreneurs” (£ /& #) and
the title of “Zhejiang Province Outstanding Builder of Socialism with
Chinese characteristics (Non-public Economic Person) (M/I&IERQ
BHRIKBALHRREFTFREEHEERFERERE) in the “40"
Anniversary of Reform and Opening, Entrepreneurs of Time (2855
403BF B FE M)” by the Ningbo City Government in November 2018.
Mr. Ye was awarded “National May-First Labor Medal” (£ f—%
#25) and acquired the title of “Zhejiang Province Model Worker” (47
TTELB)EE) in April 2019. Mr. Ye was awarded the title of “National
Model Worker” (2458 &5) in November 2020. Mr. Ye has senior
professional knowledge and experience in optical industry, as well as
extensive experience in financial management, company operations,
capital markets, risk management and strategic planning, and has
years of leadership experience in board committee.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSHREEE

Mr. Sun Yang (#£4&), aged 50, currently is an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive
Officer”). He is responsible for the overall operation and management
of the Group. Mr. Sun graduated from Ningbo University in 1995
with a bachelor’s degree in economics. He then obtained a
master’s degree in economics from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics in 2005. He joined the Group as a chief officer of
investment management centre in 2002. Mr. Sun has obtained a
qualification of senior economist issued by the Personnel Bureau
of Zhejiang in 2008 and has been awarded a qualification of chief
senior economist issued by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and
Social Security Department in December 2018. Currently, chief senior
economist is the highest economics professional and technical title in
the PRC, which is only granted to very few people who have passed
strict examinations and acquired substantial management experience
with major achievements. Mr. Sun has been an executive Director
since May 2009 and is currently a director of various subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Sun has senior professional knowledge and experience
in optical industry, as well as extensive experience in financial
management, company operations, capital markets, risk management
and strategic planning.

Mr. Wang Wenjie (£3X7R), aged 55, currently is an executive Director
and executive vice president of the Company. He is responsible for
the strategic planning and information management of the Group, as
well as the management of Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research Institute
Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Research Institute’). Mr. Wang graduated from
Zhejiang University with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering in 1989
and joined the Group after his graduation. Mr. Wang has obtained
a qualification of senior economist issued by the Personnel Bureau
of Zhejiang in 2008 and has been awarded a qualification of chief
senior economist issued by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and
Social Security Department in December 2022. Currently, chief senior
economist is the highest economics professional and technical title in
the PRC, which is only granted to very few people who have passed
strict examinations and acquired substantial management experience
with major achievements. He has been an executive Director since
December 2013. He was elected as the vice chairman of the Chinese
Optical Society in 2017, responsible for advancing the development of
optical industry in China. Mr. Wang has senior professional knowledge
and experience in optical industry, as well as extensive experience
in financial management, company operations, capital markets, risk
management and strategic planning.
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Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Wenjian (£ XZ8),
Board, executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, is one of the

aged 75, the former chairman of the

founders of the Group, and currently is a non-executive Director and
the Honorary Chairman of the Board. Mr. Wang joined the Yuyao
County Chengbei Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 as factory
manager and became its general manager since 1994 when it was
transformed to a joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Wang
(BFEELER)
by Ningbo Entrepreneurs Association and Ningbo Enterprise Unite
League in 2006 and was granted the “Ningbo Excellent Entrepreneur
Award” (B H 2K %) by the Personnel Office under Ningbo
Municipal Party Committee in 2015. Mr. Wang was awarded the title
of “Excellent Entrepreneurs (£ )" in the “40™ Anniversary of
Reform and Opening, Entrepreneurs of Time (EXZEFIMA0E G T
)" by the Ningbo City Government in November 2018. Mr. Wang
acted as the Honorary President of Yuyao Charity Federation in 2003
and was appointed as a guest professor of the College of Information
Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University in 2005. He obtained a
qualification of senior economist by Ningbo Municipal Government in

obtained the title of “Outstanding Entrepreneur”

1996. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC and is
generally granted to a person who has passed necessary examinations
and has acquired substantial management experience. Mr. Wang was
redesignated as a non-executive Director in March 2012. Mr. Wang
has senior professional knowledge and experience in optical industry,
as well as extensive experience in financial management, company
operations, capital market and risk management and strategic
planning, and has years of leadership experience in board committee.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSHREEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuging (3R E), aged 75, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of audit committee (‘Audit Committee”).
Mr. Zhang has worked in MBCloud (Shenzhen) Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (HBIEZAI ORI 5B EMABR2AF]) as finance-in-charge
from May 2017 to March 2020. Mr. Zhang worked in Shanghai Port
Bureau as heads of the financial division as well as the auditing
division. He was also appointed as a director of Shanghai Worldbest
Industry Development Co., Ltd. (E&ZERGEZERERHARRAR)
from 2001 to 2003 and acted as its chief financial officer. Mr. Zhang
worked in Shandong Sito Bio-technology Co., Ltd. (IIERZEEAY
BB ERZAF]) as chief financial officer from 2014 to 2017. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Shanghai Maritime University (now known as
Shanghai Maritime University) in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in
economics and is a senior accountant and a non-practicing member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has been
an independent non-executive Director since May 2007. Mr. Zhang
has professional knowledge in optical industry, as well as extensive
experience in financial management, company operations, capital
market, risk management and strategic planning, and has years of
leadership experience in board committee.

Mr. Feng Hua Jun (5ZE%), aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”). Mr. Feng has been teaching in the Zhejiang University
since August 1986 and been promoted to his current positions of
professor and doctoral supervisor in July 1998, mainly responsible for
works involving teaching and scientific research. Mr. Feng was the
director for the Institute of Optical Engineering, the director for the
Institute of Optical Imaging Engineering and the head of Department of
Optoelectronic Information Engineering of Zhejiang University. Mr. Feng
obtained a bachelor’s degree in July 1983 from Zhejiang University in
optical instrument engineering, and also obtained a master’s degree in
July 1986 in optical instrument engineering from the same university.
He has been an independent non-executive Director since April 2016.
Mr. Feng has extremely senior professional knowledge in optical
industry, as well as extensive experience in risk management and
strategic planning, and has years of leadership experience in board
committee.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Shao Yang Dong (BB{PE), aged 53, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”). Mr. Shao currently is the managing
partner of Yuantai Investment Partners Evergreen Fund, L.P. Mr.
Shao was a director of each of Sunny Zhejiang Optics and Sunny
Instruments from May 2005 to September 2010, Sunny Zhongshan
Optics from October 2005 to September 2010, Sunny Opotech
from November 2005 to September 2010 and Sunny Infrared Optics
from March 2006 to September 2010. Mr. Shao is a member of
Environmental Defense Fund China Advisory Board. Mr. Shao
previously worked as a financial analyst at the investment banking
division of Salomon Brothers Inc.. Mr. Shao obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics in May 1993 from Columbia University and
earned a master’s degree in business administration in June 2000 from
Stanford Graduate School of Business. He has been an independent
non-executive Director since April 2016. Mr. Shao has senior
professional knowledge related to global smartphone and automobile
industry chains, as well as extensive experience in company strategy
and operations, financial and risk management, and capital market,
and has years of leadership experience in board committee.

Ms. Jia Lina (BEEH), aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director. Ms. Jia has been working as a managing partner and
director of Jonten Certified Public Accountants (Limited Liability
Partnership) (Jiangsu branch) since December 2017. Ms. Jia has been
an independent non-executive director of Morgan Stanley Huaxin
Fund Management Co., Ltd. since February 2016. Ms. Jia obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economic trade in July 1989, a postgraduate
diploma from the department of trade economics and department of
business economics in July 1992 and a master’s degree in economics
in October 1992 from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics.
Ms. Jia was qualified as an accountant from the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in December 1996. Ms. Jia was awarded
a Jiangsu province advanced professional and technical qualification
certificate (L& & mRBEERIMERKFEE) issued by the Office of
Human Resources and Social Security of Jiangsu province ((T# &
ANERMEEREEE) in June 2020. She has been an independent
non-executive Director since 1 January 2023. Ms. Jia has extensive
experience in financial management, company operation, capital
market, risk management and strategy planning, and has years of
leadership experience in board committee.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSHREEE

Set out below is the information regarding the senior management of
the Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Kewu (E%H), aged 54, is the Vice President of the
Company. He is responsible for human resource management of
the Group. Mr. Dong graduated from Xidian University in 1990 with
a bachelor’'s degree in computer and application and from Fudan
University in 2004 with a master’s degree in business administration.
Prior to joining the Group in February 2012, Mr. Dong worked as a
partner and consulting director in a renowned consulting firm. Mr.
Dong also obtained qualifications of economist and engineer issued by
the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC and the Planning Committee of
Shandong Province.

Mr. Ma Jianfeng (B #&1&), aged 50, is the Vice President of the
Company and joint company secretary of the Company. Mr. Ma
graduated from Xiamen University in July 1995 with a bachelor’s
degree in economics. Mr. Ma is a certified public accountant of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a qualified
senior accountant in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in December
2010, Mr. Ma served as a chief financial officer for Ningbo Bird Co.,
Ltd. (BRRERIABRAF).

Mr. Zhang Guoxian (5RB &), aged 57, is the assistant to the President
of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Yuyao Huancheng High
School in 1983 and joined the Group since his graduation. Mr. Zhang
attended the seminar of executive master of business administration
in Zhejiang University from July 2004 to July 2005 and obtained
the relevant completion certificate. Prior to being appointed as the
assistant of the President, Mr. Zhang held positions including deputy
general manager, executive deputy general manager and general
manager of Sunny Zhejiang Optics.

Ms. Wong Pui Ling (Efl}), aged 41, is the joint company secretary
of the Company, senior investor relations director, authorised
representative and agent of the Company. Ms. Wong is primarily
responsible for company secretarial matters and investor relations’
matters. Ms. Wong joined the Group in July 2007. Ms. Wong has more
than 10 years of experience in financial reporting, accounting, auditing
and investor relations. Ms. Wong is a qualified accountant and is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Wong
holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a postgraduate diploma in finance and law
from the University of Hong Kong and certificate for module in risk
management from the University of Hong Kong School of Professional
and Continuing Education.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Qiu Wenwei (EX{&), aged 46, is the general manager of Sunny
Automotive Optech. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Automotive Optech. Mr. Qiu joined the Group in November
1997. He engaged in activities relating to R&D from 1997 to 2007 and
served as the head of R&D department in 2006. Mr. Qiu served as the
head of vehicle lens sets business unit in 2008 and was responsible
for preparing and setting up vehicle lens sets business of the Group.
In 2012, he served as the general manager of Sunny Automotive
Optech. Mr. Qiu obtained a master’s degree in optical engineering
from Changchun University of Science and Technology in July 2014.

Mr. Zhang Baozhong (5 RE &), aged 54, is the general manager
of Sunny SmartLead. He is responsible for the daily administration
of SunnySmartLead. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in
mechanical manufacture technique and instrument in 1990 and a
master’'s degree in business administration in 2013 from Zhejiang
University. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in September 1999 and was
engaged in the activities relating to R&D and administration for many
years. He held positions including executive deputy general manager
of Sunny Opotech and general manager of intelligent equipment
business of Sunny Instruments. In 2014, Mr. Zhang obtained a
qualification of senior engineer issued by Zhejiang Province Human
Resources and Social Security Department.

Mr. Wu Jun (&%), aged 57, is the general manager of Sunny
Zhejiang Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Zhejiang Optics. Mr. Wu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
optical instruments from Shanghai Institute of Mechanism in 1986. He
obtained a qualification as a senior engineer by the Personnel Bureau
of Zhejiang in 1999. Prior to joining the Group in March 1997, Mr. Wu
has worked in Jiangxi Optics Instrument General Factory (T 7872 4%
ES4ATE) for 10 years as research officer and quality control supervisor.

Mr. Wang Zhongwei (£ &), aged 44, is the general manager of
Sunny Optical Intelligence (Yuyao). He is responsible for the daily
administration of Sunny Optical Intelligence (Yuyao). Mr. Wang
obtained a master’s degree in optical engineering from Changchun
University of Science and Technology in 2010. He joined the Group
in September 2001. He held positions including the head of sales
department, deputy general manager and general manager of Sunny
Opotech. Mr. Wang was awarded the titles of “National Electronic
Information Industry — Influential People” (2EEFEE1T% — F£
JIAYD) by China Electronics Enterprises Association in 2016 and
“Annual Brand Meritorious Person” in “2018 Ningbo City Double
Selection Activity of Brands”.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSHREEE

Ms. Wang Mingzhu (EBF¥K), aged 45, is the general manager of
Sunny Opotech. She is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Opotech. Ms. Wang obtained a master’s degree in electronics
and communication engineering from Fudan University in 2007.
She joined the Group in April 2014 and held positions including the
head of product development department, associate director of R&D
centre and executive deputy general manager of Sunny Opotech.
She has been the general manager of Sunny Opotech since 2020.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wang was engaged in the activities
relating to R&D and manufacturing of semiconductors and optics in
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (F /5B
ERBREERR AT, Ether Optronics (Suzhou) Company Limited
(ZAHE (FIM) BRAF) and Konica Minolta Optical Instruments
(Shanghai) Company Limited (F/E-RERLEXEESE (LB BRA
Al). Ms. Wang was selected into the Ningbo Leading and Top Talents
Training Project in 2017. In 2018, Ms. Wang was granted the “Yuyao
City Outstanding Contribution Expert Award” (8:#k A 22 BRI EER)
and was awarded the “Yuyao City May-First Women’s Commendation”
(kR —mMIEZE). In 2020, Ms. Wang was granted as the
advanced person in the promotion action of “tackling for six
challenges, climbing in three years” (SFIHE « =F#3) of Ningbo
City. In 2021, Ms. Wang was awarded as the excellent entrepreneur
by China Electronics Enterprises Association and outstanding
contribution individual in 2020 Yuyao “high quality development (&&
£EE)” work. In 2022, Ms. Wang obtained the title of “Ningbo May
Day Female Pacesetter (2 fi—M@EK)”. Ms. Wang has served
as the vice chairman of Ningbo Electronics Industry Association since
April 2020.

Mr. Zhang Zhiping (3585 F), aged 54, is the general manager of Sunny
Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Zhongshan Optics”). He is
responsible for the daily administration of Sunny Zhongshan Optics.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Hunan Radio and Television University in
1992. Prior to joining the Group in April 2006, Mr. Zhang acted as the
deputy factory manager in Sintai Optical (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (%%
2 ORI R AA).
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chen Huiguang (FR=JE), aged 59, is the general manager of
Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Infrared
Optics”).
Infrared Optics. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in optical
instruments from Zhejiang University in 1983. He also obtained a

He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny

master’s degree in engineering from Zhejiang University in 1992. Prior
to joining the Group in January 1999, Mr. Chen worked in Xintian
Precision and Optical Instrument Company Limited (BT X#& %t B %22
A A]). In 2015, he was granted the title of “Elite of Ningbo City-Award
for Expert with Outstanding Contribution to Ningbo City” (FB#fE
% —-=mEmAaREEREBERE) by Ningbo Municipal Party Committee,
and was appointed as an executive director of Chinese Society for
Optical Engineering. Mr. Chen was awarded the qualification for senior
engineer of professor level in 2016. At the same time, Mr. Chen was
entitled to the special government allowance of the State Council in
2016. Mr. Chen was obtained the title of “2013-2017 Yuyao Top 10
Technological Researchers” in December 2017.

Mr. Guo Jingchao (3858]), aged 60, is the general manager of
Sunny Xinyang Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration
of Sunny Xinyang Optics. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor’s degree from
Changchun University of Science and Technology in 1986, and a
master’s degree in engineering management from Nanjing University
of Science and Technology in 2002. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2001, Mr. Guo worked in Henan Costar Group Co., Ltd. (7]
MR EEBAMRAR]). He served as a deputy general manager in
both Henan Costar Group Co., Ltd. (AR EEEAR A A]) and
Nanyang Lida Optic-electronics Co., Ltd. (FE5FIZENXBAERE A A]). In
1997, Mr. Guo obtained a qualification of senior engineer issued by
China North Industries Group Corporation.

Mr. Lou Guojun (#ZBJE), aged 58, is the general manager of Ningbo
Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Instruments”). He is responsible
for the daily administration of Sunny Instruments. Mr. Lou obtained a
diploma in business enterprise operation management from Zhejiang
Radio & TV University in 1999. Mr. Lou obtained a qualification of senior
economist issued by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008. Senior
economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC and is generally
granted to a person who has passed necessary examinations and has
acquired substantial management experience. Mr. Lou joined the Group
in June 1984.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Directors are convinced that the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group must have excellent corporate
governance elements so as to promote effective accountability and
deliver maximum benefits to the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company complied
with all of the mandatory disclosure requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Securities on The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Meanwhile, the Company has applied
the principles of good corporate governance (the “Principles”) and
complied with the code provisions and most of the recommended
best practices set out in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code.
The Company annually reviews the application of the Principles and
will improve its corporate governance practices with the reference to
the latest development of the corporate governance. The corporate
governance structure and practices of the Company are summarized
as follows.

THE BOARD
Board Functions

Being accountable to the Shareholders, the Board is responsible for
facilitating the further development of the Company’s business by
directing and guiding the business developments and operations in a
responsible and effective manner. Board members have a duty to act
in good faith, with due diligence and care and in the best interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

While the Company’s business operations are supervised by the
executive Directors and managed by the qualified members of the
Management, the decisions which are to be made by the Board
include:

1. Setting the Company’s missions and values;
2. Formulating strategic guidelines of the Company;

3. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategies aligned with the
Company’s culture;

4. Setting performance objectives and monitoring implementation
and corporate performance;

>
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Corporate Governance Report

5. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest between
the Management and Board members;

6. Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that those
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems
for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law;
and

7. Performing the corporate governance function, being responsible
for the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and reviewing the corporate governance report.

Board Composition

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the business of the issuer to ensure that the changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The Company
is committed to the view that the Board should maintain a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) so that the Board has a strong
independence to make independent and objective judgment. The
current Board comprises eight Directors, including:
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Name of Director
E=nH

Executive Directors H{TEE

Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman of the Board =& * /%)
Mr. Sun Yang (Chief Executive Officer 1TH42%)
Homf &

Mr. Wang Wenjie

FXRGE

Non-executive Director £ {TEE
Mr. Wang Wenjian
EXERE

Independent non-executive Directors BV H##HTEE
Mr. Zhang Yuging

SRRBSE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun

TSER T E

Mr. Shao Yang Dong

BRI R S A

Ms. Jia Lina (appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2023)
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Each of the Directors (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) has entered into a continuous
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the date of appointment or re-appointment setting
out key terms and conditions of their appointments. The Company is
committed to the view that the independent non-executive Directors
should be of sufficient calibre and number to warrant that their views
are acknowledged. Biographical details of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out in the section “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. The independent non-executive
Directors are in absence of any business or other relationships with the
Group which could interfere in any material manner with the exercise
of their independent judgment. The composition of the Board as at
the date of this annual report is set out in the section “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. None of the Directors has
any financial, business, family relationships or relationships in other
material aspects with each other. Each of independent non-executive
Directors has given a written confirmation to the Company confirming
that he/she has met the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules regarding the guidelines for the assessment of independence of
Directors respectively. The Company believes that the all independent
non-executive Directors have complied with the relevant guidelines as
stipulated in such rule and are still considered independent.

There are four independent non-executive Directors in the Board,
all of whom possess adequate independence. Therefore, the Board
considers that the current structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the Management of
business of the Group.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The Company has implemented a set of formal, prudent and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. The Company has also put in place plans for orderly
succession of the Board. Subject to the provision under the Articles of
Association, every Director should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The Board must explain the reasons
for the resignation, re-designation or removal of any Director.

In view of the latest Corporate Governance Code under the Listing
Rules, where all the independent non-executive Directors of an issuer
have served more than nine years on the Board, the issuer should
appoint a new independent non-executive Director on the Board in
three years.
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Responsibilities of Directors

Every Director is aware that he/she should devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Directors are kept informed from time to time on the latest
development of any changes to the regulatory requirements and the
progress of compliance with applicable rules and regulations by the
Company. The Directors are also updated from time to time on the
latest business development and operation plans of the Company.

The functions of non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) include: (a) participating in board meetings
to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance of the Company, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conduct; (b) taking the lead
where potential conflicts of interests arise; (c) serving on the Board
committees, if invited; and (d) scrutinising the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring
performance reporting. Independent non-executive Directors and
other non-executive Directors are encouraged to make a positive
contribution to the development of the issuer’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed comments.

Continuous Professional Training

In compliance with code provision C.1.4 of Corporate Governance
Code, the Company arranges and provides fund for all the Directors
to participate in continuous professional development organised in
the form of in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses
to keep them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of
the Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge
on the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the
Listing Rules and Corporate Governance Code and practices. A newly
appointed Director would receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment and subsequently trainings covering the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a Director of a listed company
and the proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors and
senior Management by the Company, where appropriate, to ensure
the awareness of Corporate Governance Code and the recommended
best practices.
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TEERRE

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to FIEEZHLEEFEZERE LRV ETHH
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure A RFAE  UHEREEETEFHLMEAR
that their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant. H1AFTERNBR NTHEESELERE - R -F
During the year of 2022, all Directors received a total of over 180 Z——FHF R EZEEHBE T HIBE180/)
hours of trainings, including internally-facilitated sessions as well as  EVIS3 - BIEANIRESHA L REERS 4
external seminars/programmes on the topics relevant to their duties as B BAIINEII AT & 5R7E -

Directors.

To summarise, the Directors have received the trainings below to  ##ER:#E @ EENFRCESATEI - LA

enhance their skills and knowledge during the year: SRR AR AL R AR, -
Training area
IR
Environmental, Corporate
social and strategy
governance planning and Craft/
management management technique
B -#HER | ARERAIR
ERERE ¢ TE/5M
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ye Liaoning BRESLSE v v v
Mr. Sun Yang R E v/ v/ v/
Mr. Wang Wenjie FXAREAE v v v/
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wang Wenjian FXELRE v/ v/ v

Independent non-executive Directors BN IEHITES

Mr. Zhang Yuging RARBEA v/ v/ v/

Mr. Feng Hua Jun HEE AL v v v

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRI S A& v v/ v/

N/A N/A N/A
Ms. Jia Lina (Note) BB L (FIEE) @R i A i A
Note: Ms. Jia Lina was appointed as an independent non-executive Director izt @ BRI L TR _T=_=F—A —HEZFA

on 1 January 2023. As a newly appointed Director, Ms. Jia Lina BYIENTES - (FEA—BHEZENE
has received a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on F EBERBAXITEZZEREESEZE -
appointment. NFEFAEMBZAOFEED -
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Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational management and administration functions
of the Group and implementation of the corporate strategies of
the Group are delegated to the Management led by the executive
Directors. The Management will report back to the Board and obtain
Board’s approval before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company. The Company reviews the
delegation arrangements periodically to ensure the arrangements
remain appropriate to the Company.

Regarding the requirements of the Listing Rules for Directors to obtain
a general understanding of an issuer’s business and to follow up
on anything that comes to their attention, it is considered that the
current arrangements for keeping the Board informed timely of the
Company’s business performance through regular presentations and/
or reports by the Management at Board meetings, providing Directors
with complete, sufficient and adequate information, and providing
the Board with timely reports on urgent key events at special Board
meetings are effective, and have satisfied the requirements under the
Listing Rules. A management report covering key business issues and
the financial performance of the Company as well as a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects has been made available to Directors on a monthly
basis throughout the year. All Directors have the access to the
Management individually and independently.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ye Liaoning, being the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), is
responsible for formulating the Group’s policies and making decisions.
Mr. Sun Yang, being the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is
responsible for the overall daily operation and management of the
Group. This segregation of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer aligns with the requirement under the code provision
C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

To facilitate good corporate governance, the Company has
established the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer set out in writing. The responsibilities of the
Chairman are performed in accordance with the code provisions under
the Corporate Governance Code.
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TEERRE

THE ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD

The Board has meetings regularly and the Board meetings are held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly interval. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Board convened eleven meetings to
consider the business developments and the needs of the Company,
and all the Directors have devoted sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs. In addition, special meetings of the Board would be
held when necessary. During the year of 2022, details of each of the
Director’s attendance record in full meetings of the Board of Directors
are as follows:

Name of Director

EEnG

Mr. Wang Wenjian (Honorary Chairman) ~ EXZES4 (FEE)E)

Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) BEEEE (LE)

Mr. Sun Yang Bkt

Mr. Wang Wenjie FXRFEE

Mr. Zhang Yuging RARE LA

Mr. Feng Hua Jun IREE S

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRIP4

Ms. Jia Lina (Note 2) ERML L (F5E2)
Note:

1. All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not by
an alternate.

2. Ms. Jia Lina was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 January 2023.
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Directors are consulted for matters to be included in the agenda
for regular Board meetings. Dates of regular Board meetings are
scheduled at least 14 days in advance to provide sufficient notices to
all Directors, ensuring that they are given an opportunity to attend. For
all other Board meetings, reasonable notices will be given. Minutes
of all Board meetings and meetings of committees should record
in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
which would be kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”). Drafts and final versions of minutes are sent
to all Directors for their comments and record respectively, in both
cases within a reasonable time after the meetings.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution.

to be material,
Independent non-executive
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material interest
in the transaction will be present at that Board meeting.

To facilitate good corporate practice, for regular board meetings, and
as far as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
board papers have been sent, in full, to all Directors. These would be
sent in a timely manner and at least three days before the intended
date of a Board meeting or a Board committee meeting (or other
agreed period).
Management for any information to enable them to make informed

All Directors have full and timely access to the
decisions at the Board meetings.

Each Director is authorised to, upon reasonable request, hire
external consultants or experts for independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses to discharge
the Director’s responsibilities. Save as disclosed in this annual report,

the Directors did not request for separate independent professional
advice during the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, as part of the commitment
to promote better communication, all Directors attended electronic
correspondences in respect of certain business development of
the Group. Such arrangement ensured fast and timely information
transmission between the Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established and delegated authorities and
responsibilities to four specific committees with written terms of
reference to assist the Board to perform its functions effectively,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Strategy and Development Committee. These Board
committees should report back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations. To provide independent views and input to the
Board, the Board has adopted following arrangements: (i) each
committee or committee member is authorised to hire outside
consultants or experts for independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense to discharge their responsibilities; and (i) most of
the committee members in Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
The Board is responsible for reviewing the implementation of such
arrangements on an annual basis. The terms of reference of each of
the Board committees have been published on the Group’s website
(www.sunnyoptical.com) and the website of the HKEXnews of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) for the Shareholders
to review.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee and adopted
its written terms of reference. The current Nomination Committee
Shao
Yang Dong and Ms. Jia Lina (appointed on 1 January 2023), who

comprises four members, namely Mr. Feng Hua Jun, Mr.
are all independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Wang Wenjian
(non-executive Director). Mr. Feng Hua Jun is the chairman of the

Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year included:

a) Reviewing the structure, size, composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

b) Identifying individuals who are qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship according to the
stipulated nomination procedures;

-
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c) Assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors according to the requirements under the Listing Rules;
and

d) Making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters related
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
plan for Directors, in particular, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer.

The Company provided the Nomination Committee sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination Committee will
seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its duties.

Meeting of the Nomination Committee is held at least once a year.
There were four meetings held by the Nomination Committee for the
year ended 31 December 2022. The attendance of each member at
Nomination Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

EEHS

Mr. Feng Hua Jun (Chairman) IHEER S ()
Mr. Wang Wenjian FXELRE

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRPER S A

Ms. Jia Lina (Note 2) ERMLL (F5E2)

Note:

1. All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not by
an alternate.

2. Ms. Jia Lina was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of the Nomination Committee on 1 January 2023.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted the following policy for the nomination of
directors (the “Nomination Policy”).
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TEERRE

Selection Criteria

In determining the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination Committee
and the Board shall consider the potential contributions a candidate
can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity. The Nomination Committee and
the Board shall consider the following selection criteria, which are not
meant to be exhaustive:

e the candidate’s personal ethics, reputation, character and
integrity;

e the candidate’s qualifications, skills, knowledge, business
judgment and experience that are relevant to the operations of the
Group;

e the diversity perspectives set out in the board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) of the Company (as amended from
time to time);

e the candidate’s availability including time commitment to discharge
his or her responsibility as a Director, including being able to
devote sufficient time to attend Board meetings, participate in
induction, trainings and other Board and Company associated
activities (In the case of a candidate who will be nominated as
an independent non-executive Director will be holding his or her
seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the Nomination
Committee should consider the reasons given by the candidate
for being able to devote sufficient time to discharge his or her
responsibility as an independent non-executive Director);

e the candidate for the position of an independent non-executive
Director must comply with the independence criteria as prescribed
under the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time);

e the current size and composition of the Board, the needs of the
Board and the respective committees of the Company;

e the succession planning of members of the Board to ensure the
leadership continuity and smooth functioning of the Group; and

e any other factors that the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may consider appropriate.
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The Nomination Committee and the Board shall ensure that the
composition of the Board is in conformity with the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The recruitment, identification, evaluation, recommendation,
nomination, selection and new appointment or re-appointment of
each proposed Director shall be assessed and considered by the
Nomination Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria as

set out in this Nomination Policy.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board:

e the Nomination Committee may take such measures that it
considers appropriate in connection with its identification and
evaluation of candidates, including but not limited to considering
referrals from the Directors, Shareholders, Management and
advisors of the Company;

e the Nomination Committee shall identify and ascertain the
character, qualification, knowledge and experience of the
candidate and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such candidate; and

e the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations by
submitting the candidate’s personal profile to the Board for its
consideration.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
for its consideration and recommendation for the candidate to stand
for re-election at a general meeting.

For each proposed new appointment or re-appointment of a Director,
the Nomination Committee shall obtain all applicable declarations and
undertaking as required under the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time).

In the case of a nomination for the position of an independent non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee shall ensure that the
concerned candidate meets the independence criteria as prescribed
under the Listing Rules.
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TEERRE

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of candidates to stand for election (and re-election)
at a general meeting.

The ultimate responsibility for the selection and appointment of
Directors rests with the entire Board.

Reviewing and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will from time to time review the
Nomination Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure the
effectiveness and compliance with the regulatory requirements at the
relevant time and good corporate governance practice.

The Nomination Committee shall, when necessary, recommend
revisions to the Nomination Policy to the Board for its consideration
and approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The current Remuneration Committee
Shao Yang Dong, Mr. Feng
Hua Jun, Mr. Zhang Yuging and Ms. Jia Lina (appointed on 1 January
2023), Shao
Yang Dong is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

comprises four members, namely Mr.

who are all independent non-executive Directors. Mr.

The principal roles and functions performed by the Remuneration
Committee shall be:

(@) to assess the performance of the Directors;

(b) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all the Directors’ and senior Management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(c) to review and approve the Management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

-
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to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
Management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payment, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and that are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of their associates is involved in
deciding that Director’s own remuneration; and

to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has provided sufficient resources to the Remuneration
Committee to perform its duties.
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Meeting of the Remuneration Committee is held at least once a year
and there were four meetings held by the Remuneration Committee
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Remuneration Committee
has reviewed and approved the remunerations and bonus payable to
executive Directors and senior Management for the year ended 31
December 2022. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee has
reported to the Board on the proceedings of the meeting. Details of
the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2022 are set out in Note 14
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The
attendance of each member at Remuneration Committee meetings is
as follows:

Name of Director

EEHS

Mr. Shao Yang Dong (Chairman) BRAPER A (F/E)
Mr. Feng Hua Jun TEEE

Mr. Zhang Yuging SRRBSTE

Ms. Jia Lina (Note 2) ERMLL (5E2)

Note:

1. All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not by
an alternate.

2. Ms. Jia Lina was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of the Remuneration Committee on 1 January 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference. The current Audit Committee comprises four
members, namely Mr. Zhang Yuqging, Mr. Feng Hua Jun, Mr. Shao
Yang Dong and Ms. Jia Lina (appointed on 1 January 2023), who
are all independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Zhang Yuqing is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Group’s audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2022 were reviewed by all the
members of the Audit Committee.
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All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed by the
Management. The work done and findings of the Audit Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, the issues which
were brought to the attention of the Management and the Board were
not material and therefore no discussion and disclosure are required
in this annual report. Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings have
been kept by the Company Secretary. Drafts and final versions of
minutes have been sent to all members of the Audit Committee
for their comments and record respectively, in both cases within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Sufficient resources (including the
advice of external auditor) have been allocated to the Audit Committee
to discharge its duties.

The principal roles and functions performed by the Audit Committee
include:

(@) Considering and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and
approving their remuneration, and addressing any question of their
resignation and dismissal,

(b) Reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements
of the Group together with the Company’s interim and annual
reports;

(c) Maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Group’s external
auditor;

(d) Reviewing the continuing connected transactions;

(e) Overseeing the Group’s financial control and internal control; and

(f) Taking charge of the ESG matters of the Group.

The Board has provided the Audit Committee with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

There were three meetings held by the Audit Committee for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021, ESG report for
the year ended 31 December 2021, external auditor’s remuneration,
risk management report for the year ended
31 December 2021 and risk management and internal audit work

internal control system,

plan for the year ending 31 December 2022, and interim report for
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the period ended 30 June 2022 at the relevant meetings and reached
unanimous consent to recommend the aforesaid be approved by the
Board. The chairman of the Audit Committee reported to the Board on
the proceedings of these meetings. The Board has not taken any view
that deviated from that of the Audit Committee.

During the year of 2022, the attendance of each member at Audit
Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

EEHE

Mr. Zhang Yuging (Chairman) RRESE (F/E)
Mr. Feng Hua Jun HER L E

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRI S A&

Ms. Jia Lina (Note 2) EEMzt (KisE2)

Note:

1. All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not by
an alternate.

2. Ms. Jia Lina was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of the Audit Committee on 1 January 2023.

Furthermore, another three meetings have been held during the period
from 31 December 2022 to the publication date of this annual report
to review, inter alia, the risk management report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022, the effectiveness review of the internal
control system, the risk management work plan in 2023, the annual
report and financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022, the report from external auditor on the audit of the
Group’s financial statements, the continued non-exempt connected
transactions, the re-appointment of external auditor and ESG report
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

The Company’s Strategy and Development Committee comprises
five members, namely Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Wang
Wenjie (all are executive Directors), Mr. Wang Wenjian (a non-
executive Director) and Mr. Feng Hua Jun (an independent non-
executive Director). Mr. Ye Liaoning is the chairman of the Strategy
and Development Committee.
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The primary duty of the Strategy and Development Committee is to
advise the Board on the Group’s strategy for business development
and future prospects in the international market for optical related
products. It is intended that members of this committee shall consist
of local and international experts in the optical industry and other
related industries. There were three meetings held by the Strategy
and Development Committee for the year ended 31 December 2022.
During the year, the Strategy and Development Committee handled
matters in relation to the development strategy of the Group and the
new development plan of the Group and their implementation.

The attendance of each member at Strategy and Development
Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

EEpng

Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) BESSE(EE)
Mr. Sun Yang Bkt

Mr. Wang Wenjie FXREE

Mr. Wang Wenjian FXELAE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun BEE Tt

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the terms of reference for the corporate
governance functions on 22 December 2011 in compliance with the
code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code which was
adopted on 1 April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the
corporate governance function, the Board (including independent non-
executive Directors) shall be responsible for developing, reviewing
and/or monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
of the Company annually; carrying out training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior Management; and
reviewing and monitoring compliance with policies and practices in
legal and regulatory requirements of the Company. The Board has
performed the above-mentioned corporate governance functions and
this corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in
discharge of its corporate governance functions.
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DIVERSITY

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted the following Board Diversity Policy.
Background and Vision

The Company attaches great importance to the people-oriented
and diversity in particular. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of the
Board’s performance of functions.

Policy Statement

The Company believes that board diversity can enhance the decision-
making capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing
with organisational changes and would be less likely to suffer from
group thinking. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a wide range of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, business perspectives, skills, knowledge
and service term, and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time. High emphasis is placed
on ensuring a balanced composition of skills and experience for the
Board members in order to provide a range of perspectives, insights
and challenges that enable the Board to discharge its duties and
responsibilities effectively, support good decision making in view of
the core business and strategy of the Group, and support succession
planning and development of the Board.

-
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The current Board’s composition under diversified perspectives is %7t EBHE BB EESHEAMMRNT ¢
summarized as below:

Name Ye Liaoning SunYang ~ Wang Wenje ~ Wang Wenjian ~ Zhang Yuging  Feng Hua Jun Shao Yang Dong Jia Lina"e®
i3 358 Bk IR Ixs FRE RER g BB

Gender Male Male Male Male Male Male Male Female

i3] 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 X

Age
i 57 50 55 75 75 59 53 55

Skills/ knowledge/
professional experience

RE/AR/EXER

Financial management

HRER \ \ \ \ \ \ V

Operation management

gguE y | y 4 | I |

Capital market

ek \ \ \ \ \ \ \

Risk management

BREE \ \ V \ \ \ \ \

Strategic planning

BRAH \ \ V \ y \ \ y

Board committee
leadership experience

ESZEER84% \ \ y \ \ y

Optical industry and
other related industries
experience

RETRRAMRBIRER \ \ y \ \ \ \

Note: Ms. Jia Lina was appointed as an independent non-executive Director fffzx: ERPLTHR _ZET_=F—H—HEZTA
on 1 January 2023. BWIEMITES ©
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Measurable Objectives

In view of the Corporate Governance Code, gender diversity at the
Board level is strongly encouraged. To achieve gender diversity and
fulfill the internal numerical targets and timelines, the Company has
appointed Ms. Jia Lina as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee with effect from 1 January 2023. The Board plans to catch
up with the industry average level in respect of the gender distribution
in the near future.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of board diversity
is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. The Board also
aspires to having an appropriate proportion of Directors who have
direct experience in the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic
backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Continuous Monitoring

The Board continues to review and assess on the Group’s diversity
profile including gender balance of the Directors, senior Management
and employees, and its progress in achieving its diversity objectives
in accordance with the Listing Rules on annual basis. The Company
has authorised the Nomination Committee to search for suitable
potential candidates of a Director from time to time in order to develop
a pipeline of potential successors to the Board to achieve gender
diversity. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions on the
Board Diversity Policy that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for its consideration and approval.

-
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Workforce Diversity BI% ik

The Group aims to provide a diversified working environment for ARNEEHBMANRAE TEEZTILH TIERE »
the workforce. The Board will continue to monitor and review the ZEZEZEHRE FTHRNBELEELRBTETS
workforce diversity in accordance with the Listing Rules and plan to  Jtfb * B R [ gemIsE » s EIEK —EF AF
achieve a more balanced gender diversity ratio in the workforce, if #EIRE TR - TRBUET (BRESE
possible. Set out below is the table summarising the diversity status &2 AE) B ZTibikin

among the workforce (including the senior management).

Category Employee structure As at 31 December 2022
Rl BI#&E R=B==%5+=HA=+—H
Number Proportion
A" £ 4
Gender Male 15,933 59.9%
]l S
Female 10,677 40.1%
g
Age group <30 14,807 55.6%
FHerE R 30-39 9,699 36.5%
40-49 1,775 6.7%
>50 329 1.2%
Type of employees Formal employees 25,550 96.0%
EEEA FEE
Trainees 1,060 4.0%
BEEE
Position Senior management (Note 1) 783 2.9%
Bz =EERAS (M)
Middle management (Note 2) 4,670 17.6%
REEERAS (Mizk2)
Junior employees (Note 3) 21,1567 79.5%
EE 8T (M:3)
Region Mainland China 25,255 94.9%
i = HR B A
Other regions 1,355 51%
HAhih @
Notes: FIEE -

(1) Senior management include personnel with management title of deputy (1) SEEBAERERBMALRIE KL FkFE

department head and above or with professional technical title of senior RMERESRIRMEUAENAER  HF &
engineer and above; approximately 18.0% of senior management members [EEIEABRLEAZLIE18.0% °
are female.

(2) Middle management include personnel with the management title of (2) FEBEBASABTEBUARRLRIBRHENF
division manager and assistant of department head or with professional ERMERATIRMMAS -
technical title of engineer.

(3) Junior employees include all personnel other than senior management and  (3) EEAERKSEEBAERTREEEASIN
middle management. FIEAE -

=
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Ma Jianfeng and Ms. Wong Pui Ling, the joint Company
Secretaries of the Company, are employed on a full time basis and
have knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs. They both have
taken not less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Please refer to the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for their
biographies.

Under the corporate governance measures adopted by the Company,
the Board is responsible for approving the selection, appointment or
dismissal of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary should
report to the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. All Directors
should have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board procedures, and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations, are followed.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with
regard to securities transactions of the Directors, all Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the required standards set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2022.

—
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND RELATED
MATTERS

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s approval of appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Deloitte”) as the Company’s
external auditor for 2022. Its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements are set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. Details of the amount of auditor’s
remuneration in 2022 are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company has also paid fees amounting to
HKD4,160,000 to the auditor for audit service and review service as
a reporting accountant during the year. Besides these, Deloitte also
provided tax filing services and consulting services to the Company
and its subsidiaries and charged a service fee of approximately
RMB461,765. Meanwhile, Deloitte also provided bond issuance related
services to the Company and charged a service fee of HKD560,000.
In addition, Deloitte has been engaged by the Company to perform a
limited assurance engagement in relation to certain greenhouse gas
emission intensity data included in the Company’s ESG report for the
year ended 31 December 2021 with a service fee of approximately
RMB120,000. Other than as disclosed above, Deloitte did not provide
any other services to the Group.

Deloitte will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at AGM
of the Company to be held on 24 May 20283. The re-appointment of
Deloitte as the external auditor of the Group has been recommended
by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the Board, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming AGM.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to keep formal
accounting records and prepare the financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries, in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. To the best knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on Company’s ability to continue its business.
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Management has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as it would enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other information during the Board’s approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report contained in this annual report.

The Board’s responsibility is to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extended to annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as
well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledge that the Board is responsible for monitoring
the Group’s internal control system on an on-going basis and
reviewing its effectiveness annually. The Board, the Group’s internal
audit department and the Management review the effectiveness of
the internal control system particularly financial, operational and
compliance controls of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Audit
Committee reviews the findings and opinions of the Group’s internal
audit department and the Management on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system, and reports to the Board on such
reviews. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board considered
the internal control system is adequate and effective. No significant
areas of concern which might affect the Shareholders were identified.

The internal audit department of the Group should ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investment interests and the Group’s assets safety.
The main functions of the internal audit department are to audit the
operating efficiencies of each subsidiary of the Company, to audit
upon resignation of key management personnel, to assist the Board
in reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group, to review internal control of business processes, to audit
the implementation of overall risk management, to promote the
construction of anti-malpractice and to audit individual projects (such
as compliance of connected transactions and audit report of goods in
transit). Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial,
operational compliance controls and risk management functions will
be conducted annually by the Board.
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The internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledge that the Board is responsible for the
effectiveness of the risk management and has authorized the Audit
Committee to act as the professional committee to review the risk
management reports submitted by the Management, ensuring that the
Management has fulfilled its responsibilities to establish effective risk
management and internal control systems, and review them annually.
Systems and procedures have been established by the Group to
identify, assess, manage and monitor various risks including strategy,
financing, market, operation and compliance that may have impacts
on the Group and each major department. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board considered that the risk management is
adequate and effective.

The risk management of the Company is designed to manage rather
than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Company has built an enterprise risk management (“ERM”)
system with a view to enhancing the risk management and corporate
governance practice, and improving the effectiveness and efficiency of
internal control systems across the whole Group.

The Group has organised and established a risk management
group (“‘Risk Management Group”) headed by the Chief Executive
Officer, responsible for daily management related to risks of the
Group. All of the Group’s subsidiaries have also established their risk
management teams, responsible for risk management of their own. At
the same time, the Group has engaged a world-renowned consultant
institution as the risk management consultant to assist the Group
in building effective risk management overall framework so as to
ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
staff training programmes and relevant budget of the Group’s risk
management, internal audit and reporting function.
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TEERRE

The Board believes that a heightened focus on risk and compliance is
beneficial for the ongoing development and growth of the Company
as well as its staff. In establishing the ERM system, all key functions of
the Company were carried out by the Risk Management Group of the
Group to undertake the following exercises:

1. Enterprise risk assessment - to identify and prioritise the Group’s
key business risks;

2. Enterprise risk response - to assess the related internal controls
and risk mitigating measures;

3. Monitor the implementation of risk management - to review the
inspection report on implementation of risk management and
follow up with the response situation every month;

4. Build the library of key risk indicators - to recognise existing
risk monitoring indicators, monitor the running conditions of the
indicators and make appropriate risk warning through the risk
management system;

5. Improve the risk checklist - to identify and build a risk checklist
which is suitable to the actual situation of the Company;

6. Risk management and multi-system integration - to integrate
risk management with strategic management, the International
Organization for Standardization (“ISO”) system, the Failure Mode
and Effect Analysis (“FMEA”) system and other systems;

7. Risk management and business integration - to integrate risk
management into the normal operation of each business unit,
invest in personnel and resources and optimise the process
for key risks, concentrate resources on business activities with
relatively high risks, and continuously improve the integration of
the risk management system and the businesses of the Group;

8. Risk management is included in the performance evaluation of
the Company, and it is launched for each subsidiary to share the
benchmarking management experience, thus to give full play to
the function of the Risk Management Group; and

9. Risk management digitalization construction - timely present risk
management dashboard of the Company, systematically present
risk pre-warning data, standardise risk management process and
accumulate risk experience.
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Summary of Work Conducted by Risk Management
Group in 2022

During the year, the Risk Management Group of the Group reported
to the Audit Committee on the annual risk assessment and internal
control reviews. Its work in 2022 included:

Self-assessment on risk management

e Organized risk management training and self-assessment
coaching for each business segment and department;

e Organized risk identification and assessment in each business
segment and department to dynamically identify the potential
risks that are faced by each business segment and department to
formulate specific contingency plan for key risks and controlling
targets for each risk that needs to be achieved and generate risk
management self-assessment report; and

e |ssued the risk management self-assessment report of the Group
and submitted to the Audit Committee for review.

Optimized and expanded the database of risk management

e Optimized the risk management checklist and unified the language
of risk management;

e Expanded the key risk indicators (“KRI”) identification work for
each business segment and department to attain overall coverage
of KRI for key risks;

e QOrganized each business segment and department to establish
key risk register and traced historical risky events to formulate
the case experience database of risk management, solidified
management experience in each case, and shared outstanding
management experience among each business segment and
department; and

e Established a general outline of risk register and itemized entry
standards of such register, as well as detailed management
system of risk management register.

Raised risk awareness and talent development

e Empowered personnel of every level with risk management
capabilities, with all levels of management staff and technical staff
covered;

e Basically possessed capabilities of KRI construction and optimization,
risk management self-examination, internal empowerment of risk
management and dynamic management in each business segment
and department;
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i

FERBWME

Summarized the risk management experience, formed excellent
cases of risk management construction, shared the case
construction experience with external enterprises for many times
and received several awards from external institutes;

Developed specialized courses of risk management, launched
online course of risk management on the learning platforms,
and shared such courses among each business segment and
department; and

Established a team of professional talents for risk management in
each business segment and department.

Risk management performance appraisal and digitalization construction

Optimized the risk management performance appraisal method;

Established review rules for the improvement projects of annual
key risks and implemented the declaration and review of annual
key risk projects;

Risk management was incorporated into the performance
appraisal of each business segment and department and two
performance appraisals were conducted in the middle of the year
and at the end of the year;

The Risk Management Group formulated the risk management
appraisal standards and scoring rules; and

Each business segment and department conducted the
digitalization of risk management to achieve online, timely and
dynamic management.

Normalized risk management

(76

Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management system, and reviewed significant risks and emerging
risks with department heads;

Expanded the coverage of the risk management pre-warning
system integration;

Monitored the operating results of the KRI every month and gave
a timely warning on the abnormal indicator results;

Monitored precautionary results of KRI every month, analyzed

abnormal causes, formulated improvement plans, and integrated
response plan management for daily risks;
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e Piloted the baseline management of the precautionary results of
KRI;

e Monitored the implementation of the risk response measures every
month and progress of the year-end targets and revised the response
plan and the contents in the risk checklist in a timely manner;

e Conducted internal control review of key business processes of
each business segment and department;

e Explored the integration of risk management with strategy,
excellent quality management, ISO system and FMEA system in
each business segment and department;

e Explored the nesting of risk management and business systems
of each business segment and department to form a risk
management system that can support the business development;

e (Centralized resources on business activities with relatively high
risks, invested in personnel and resources and optimized the
process for key risks in each business segment and department;

e The internal audit department independently reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
system construction and submitted the review results and
recommendations on improvement to the Audit Committee;

e Collected the major risk events from each business segment and
department every month, traced the historical risky events and
formed a risk register;

e Strengthened the closed-loop management of risk register and
risk indicators;

e Risk management review meetings were held regularly by each
business segment and department; and

e The Group held the annual conclusion meeting of risk management
and initiated the self-assessment of risk management for 2023.

Risk Management Policy Framework

Effective risk management and internal control systems are critical
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives. The Group has
established a risk management policy framework, which was approved
by the Board and the Audit Committee, and executed by the Risk
Management Group. It authorizes the Group to take a consistent
and effective approach applied across the Group to fully manage the
risks associated with strategies, financing, operations, market and
compliance.
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TEERRE

The following principals and key processes are adopted under the ZAEEBECEREREEERLBEATRIUMES
Group’s ERM framework: TERE

The Board/ Audit Committee is the top
decision-making body of risk
EEg EXEES management of the Company

EEg ERZEGRANA

Jea\ B B 2R ) B R BR M

i

The Board/ Audit Committee

R e iyl Second line of defense ey uenEl Third line of defense
Grou% SE=Ep#& Department [EEECLiE

Eri=ssim (R The second line of defense is mainly ke The third line of defense is
responsible for coordinating the mainly responsible for
planning, construction, maintenance examining, auditing and
and enhancement of the risk monitoring the overall risk
management and internal control management by the first and
system. second lines of defense.
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Operational First line of defense

Department E—ER R

E R IIPe The first line of defense mainly
conducts the collection of initial risk
information and risk identification,
proactively implements risk response
plans and participate in the
construction of risk management
culture.
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To establish the model for the three lines of defense of risk
management according to the Integrated Framework of the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”):

First line of defense: Operational departments of each company and
functional departments of the Group

The first line of defense mainly conducts collection of initial
risk information and risk identification, proactively implements
risk response plans and participates in the construction of risk
management culture.

Second line of defense: Risk Management Group

The second line of defense is mainly responsible for coordinating the
overall planning, construction, maintenance and enhancement of the
risk management and internal control system.

Third line of defense: Internal audit department

The third line of defense is mainly responsible for examining, auditing
and monitoring the overall risk management work of the first line and
second line of defense.

According to the COSO Integrated Framework, the risk management
work follows the six steps of basic procedures as below:

6.Monitoring
i

5.Control

Activity
EHEE

4.Risk Response
JeR\ ez
AR

Continuous Processes
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1.Goal Setting
H IR E

2.Risk
Identification

L9l

3.Risk Assessment
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TEERRE

Phase 1

Goal Setting

The Board establishes common risk assessment criteria and sets up
risk reference tables for the Group. Meanwhile, Risk Management
Group of the Group and Risk Management Group of each business
segment discuss and formulate overall risk management objectives,
management requirements and organization methods.

Phase 2

Risk Identification

Each business segment and department collects risk information
related to the Group and identifies the risks that potentially impact
the key processes of the operations. The Group also identifies
opportunities for improvement.

Phase 8

Risk Assessment

Each business segment and department uses uniform and quantitative
criteria to assess the identified risks along with their impacts on the
business and the possibility of their occurrence to determine the risk
level.

Phase 4

Risk Response

Each business segment and department determines the overall
response strategy and corresponding response plan for the assessed
risks as well as the implementation measures such as risk taking, risk
avoidance, risk transfer and risk reduction to deal with the risks.

Phase 5

Control Activity

Each business segment and department establishes or modifies
relevant systems and control activity procedures to ensure that
necessary risk responses and action plans are implemented and the
risk management response plan is executed, in order to control and
manage potential risks.

>
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Phase 6

Monitoring

Each business segment and department continues to follow up the
operation situation of KRI, implementation and effectiveness of the risk
response plan, makes timely risk warning, adjusts response plan and
reports risks regularly to the relevant Management within the Group.
The internal audit department independently reviews the adequacy
and effectiveness of the construction of risk management system
per annum, and submits the review results and recommendations on
improvement to the Audit Committee.

With this practical and effective framework, risk management has been
integrated into each functional department to resolve any possible
material internal control defect.

Group’s Risk Report

The Group faces various risks and uncertainties. The relevant key
risks are the risks that the Group must take in order to achieve its
strategic objectives. If they are not handled properly, it might bring
adverse impact to the operations of the Group. A comprehensive
risk assessment and risk mitigation measures help ensure possible
material internal control defects and key risks are properly managed
and effectively controlled, and ensure inside information is properly
handled and disseminated in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
followings are the principal potential risks that the Board has identified

for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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TEERRE

Group’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend
FrEEEEAR TERHREEL R BERRER
Business and Business and Strategic Risks:
Strategic Risk

XURERER  EERERER:

- The uncertainty of changes in regulatory, political - Proactively monitoring the industry trends, competitors and
environment, trading environment, the development innovative products;
trend of industries and other external envionment - TERERTEBY  HRUTREAFER
in the region where the Group operates may
result in significant adverse impact to the Group’s - Proactively monitoring and preparing for global and local
international roadmap, business performance, changes in supervisory regulations that may affect the Group;
market share and prospects for development and/or - BEBREENEERY AT EAEEN 2RI FEERPINE
the implementation its strategy. g

- AEECEMEHEES WoRK E5R% 0
FURBESNRREENTEEE  EEAE - Enhancing supersaturated investments in emerging strategic
EMERLES  £EBKERE  mHHE - BEMS  industries to quickly complete the strategy rollout;
R/ SEROEHRIEATFIFE - - MAFESREXEOARA  ARTRERER:

- Increasing investments in new businesses and cultivating new
growth points;
- MAHMEERA - BEHMOERE

- Dynamically updating the development strategies of the
Company and regularly adjusting the ways and means of
promoting strategic objectives according to the situations;

- DEENALTRREE REVATHEREEBRESN)
ANFR

- Continuing to promote the capability of local operation of
overseas production bases;
- RERPSMEEEMNALEREN

- Concentrating the resources and accelerating the
implementation of new mechanisms for emerging businesses;

- RPER - MRFERRBOFRESL

- Continuing to identify the risks of cooperation with customers
and supply chain; and
- RERRTF  HEESERRIN R

- Implementing corresponding projects of monitoring, increasing
strategic flexibility and specially reserving resources for
strategy.

- BRUEBAEE SNEREEURABREELR-

P
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TEERRE

Group’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREENR

Target risk trend

AREIEAR BEERER

Operational Risk

Egamk

Safe Production Risks:
ZEEERR

- Material emergency accidents affecting safe
production of equipment and facilities, property
safety, occupational disease hazards of employees
and enterprise’s continuous operations may occur
as a result of the enterprise’s internal factors.

- XOERPERZMEC THEHRYERE R
tiiﬁ MEZZ al%iﬁﬁmu&%g % -
BRLENSARESHS

Enhancing employees’ safe production training, organizing
safety training and drills irregularly, enhancing employees’

safety awareness;
MEETZRAESE FEHEER2EIIRET  #HET
-t

Strengthening the daily monitoring and timely maintenance
of various equipment, and carrying out safety and fool-proof
transformation of equipment;
MERRRENDBEFERERE - 3
%

PHREETREHRU

Implementing a graded management of safe risk to reduce the
incidence of repeated risks;

ZEREBENOAEE  BEREEERERLER:

Timely monitoring the operations of the KRI, carrying out

inspections on hidden hazards regularly, controlling safe risks

from their sources and thoroughly remediating hidden safety

hazards;

ERERKRIETEN  THRARE!
CHRRBRETHERR:

REHE  2HREL2A

Optimizing the integration of security management and the
Standard Operating Procedure (“SOP") to adjust operating
procedure as appropriate;

Bz EREREERREF ([SOP))BA
AR

HERBRED

Optimizing emergent contingency plan system and immediately
activating the emergency response procedures in case of
black swan events;

BLESERNE  mBRREEHIANDESERES

Promoting a normalized management of emergency
management mechanism, and implementing such in strict
compliance with relevant state security laws and regulations;
and
REESERENERL
i1 R

R BREREZEERTERER

Participating in property insurance and purchasing insurances
for the employees

SMMERREAEIBERR

TN

ZRL (£E) GRAR » 2022 £
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Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

IREHREENR BEERER

Group’s principal risks

AREIEAR

Environmental Protection and Climate Change
Risks:
REREARRA AR :

- Due to changes in internal operations and the - Incorporating the environment, climate and energy

P
(84

overall external environment, there may be
discharges of wastes that have a significant impact
on the environment, and inadequate efficiency in
energy consumption may also adversely affect the
Company's operating costs, reputation, markets,
legal and policy compliance. At the same time, the
Company may experience loss of assets and supply
chain disruptions due to the global climate change.

ARSEE RNTERREE TR HRERY
REBEATENERY  #REAMELES - 71
AREARNRRERA  BE T AERIES
ABREERTHYE - A% - ARERAREL
ARR TR ERAERA REERTESER -

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

management and control into the long-term development
strategy of the Company, paying continuous attention to, and
collecting issues related to the environment and climate, and
reporting to the Audit Committee regularly;

BRE - R RERBARLARGEEEE  HEHET
BERS ARER REHRERZECER:

Enhancing monitoring on the waste water, waste gas and solid
waste, and ensuring the compliance in disposal and discharge
of waste;

MERK BRNEEERNES REEENEHERES
&

Increasing the consumption ratio of green energy, developing
and promoting suppliers to use green energy;
RefELRRAL - 7 EPEEACRSEER

Increasing the energy consumption efficiency and enhancing
energy management and control capability of each business
segment and department; and
REREXDPNBALRERRE - BALRERLS : R

Securing a safe environment for employees.
BREIZARENRE
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Group’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IRBEHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETERR BEERER

Human Resource Risks:

ANEFRR

The demand of the Group’s development cannot
be fulfilled with insufficient human resource reserve,
which thereby affects the Group’s production plan
and operation. It might render the Group’s products
and production methods uncompetitive;
ANERREBIR  REAEENERFRELFD
PRI EREEE EE BRI THER
FEENERREENEREREN

Failure in the optimization of human resource
allocation and insufficient incentive mechanism may
lead to loss of talents, stoppages and other labour
related issues, which may adversely affect the
Group’s operation; and

ANERAENECEREARABEH AR - B
HEABALRE  BIREMATREE HA5E
HEZRKINTE Rk

As overseas investment increases, the differences in
employment overseas and within China may lead to
risks in overseas employment.

BEEMENEN  BHRIEENEEZEN -
AEREENEIAR -

Carrying out organization diagnosis regularly, formulating talent
plan that matches the Company’s strategies to reserve talents
in advance;
THRRAGIM - HIRRARRAEREENAL R - A
BAT

Strengthening staff efficiency management, optimizing
organization and process, improving work efficiency and
increasing per capita productivity;

IEARER - BLESERE  RETIERE  REAIELX

Proactively promoting the production line automation;

BREETERRD(

Carrying out talent evaluation and assessment regularly, hiring
and retaining talents with attractive incentive program;

THY AT E TR R - WARFRE| N0 REEEAR
BEAT

Improving the entire life cycle management of cadre to
optimize the rank system;

rEGTREnRHEE  RICBRESR:

Carrying out multi-level talent development programs to
improve employees’ business standard;

REZEANATERGE RERIHEHKT

Strengthening the construction of corporate culture to enhance
employees’ satisfaction and engagement; and

MBCEXMBRIIE RABTREEEHEE : &

Improving the management mechanisms of overseas
recruitment, remuneration and personnel.

EEBMIHE  FHRAFSERHRA -

RENRBE (RE) BRAA] » 2022 F3]
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Group’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IRBEHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETEAR BEERER

Supply Chain Management Risks:
HEFEERR

- The supplies of some core raw materials, - Optimizing supplier management strategies to enhance supply

components, high-end equipment were limited. As
affected by energy shortage, international refations,
inflation and fluctuations in exchange rates, the
Group may face risks related to the supplies of raw
materials and components, rising cost, which have

flexibility;
BHERERERR ROHEELM

Expanding resource channels by exploring supplier resources;

RARERER BXERRE:

affected the delivery of products.

- HABLENE - TEMN  SRAEEREAR - %8 - Strengthening its control over the use of materials to improve
2R BERBR BRREXEHTE  KAEEE  the utiization rate of materials;
EEMH TRHEEE RALESAERERR - - NRUBEREENE  REMHFAE

FEEMRL

- Strengthening the advantages of centralized procurement
and realizing the sharing of procurement resources among all
business segments;

- BIEEPREED ERXEXVREEARAT

- Strengthening the fine management of material management,
and reducing the risk of idle materials;

- NEPREENRACER  REDHRPER

- Strengthening the cooperation with suppliers and stockpiling
in advance to safeguard the supply of materials;

- IDBEGEHAE - RAGH  REMHEES

- Paying attention to and monitoring exchange rates, market
supply and demand, tariff polices, market prices of bulk raw
materials, international political dynamics and inflation in a
timely manner to reduce procurement cost;

- REEIVESER  wSHEHE  BRIE  AZRVHD
miaER  BRECADERBK - RERERE

- Safeguarding delivery of full life cycle by identifying delivery
risks at its source, confirming materials in advance, planning
production capacity and coordinating overall resources; and

- REGEBRARE  ORESNRNER - RAEINE R
HEN RERIERER: R

- Promoting the construction of digital and intelligent plants and
improving information board.

- BERECIRER <EARER-

o~
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Group’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

AEETERR IREHREERR BEERER

Product Quality Risks:
EREERK:

- The Company's products may have product quality - Carrying out the quality first activities actively and enhancing
issues that affect customer satisfaction, damage the the awareness and capability of quality among all employees
Company’s image and increase cost of operations. of the Group;

- FRABEMARGFHEEREERNE YERFRE - ARENBEERREEZLNED REZEMZEEZELN
B BRANEKIBLEMERRE «

- Strengthening technical reform, improving relative production
capacity, and reducing loss rate;

- RIBRH RAEHER REREER:

- Strengthening the quality managemem of the entire life cycle;

- BlrinAHRE

- Deeply observing and understanding customers’ use scenarios
of our products, sorting out and expanding our product line
portfolio based on customers’ use scenarios, improving
customer loyalty, and forming a product closed loop;

- RABRABREFHRAEMNERGS EREFPNRAS
ERRBERFEANNERRES  REZPHN - WHKERDHM

2,

- Enhancing the ability to identify quality requirements of
customers and track customer satisfaction from time to time;

- RAENEPREERMES TEHRUEFPNEE

- Improving the control ability of production process and the
ability of quality management, applying FMEA to identify
potential quality risks in advance, and improving the ability
from trial production to mass production;

- RBLEBREEME) TETEES  ERFMEARAERE

mERR  REHESELS:

- Enhancing on-site trainings for operators and the operators
shall strictly follow the SOP in processing;
- MERGREARE  REERRLMSOP £/ :

- Proactively promoting the production line automation
and enhancing investment in informatization of inspection
equipment; and

- BEEELESEDL MAESLRARBRA : R

- Implementing and applying the informatization system,
realizing data tracking throughout the entire process.

- EREEAESLER EREHEHEEH

\
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BERlE

Group’s principal risks

AEETERR

Information System and Information
Security Management Risks:

FRAREEER2ERAR

- The operation of the Group is highly dependent
on the informatization system. If digitalization
construction is slow or lags behind business
development or if the system is hacked or attacked
or management of trade secret information is
inadequate, it may lead to the leakage of the
Company’s confidential information and that the
information system is incapable to support business
development, which affect the normal operation and
the sustainable profitability of the Company.

- FREEEREABESLELR  AF(EREEY
BRREBER  ZRBARIUE - ABZWNEE
BEBTIM - MERARAIREERRE 58
AREEEEBER YELLRALREES &%@
B -

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IRBEHREERR

Establishing an information security management system,
continuously improving the management mechanism of
information system and continuously enhancing the information
security control measures;

RUGSR2ERRZ HETELSZNERNE  TTER
ERERREHIER

Strengthening the physical security of enterprise data centres,
developing information system/data backup and information
system disaster recovery plans, standardizing personnel
operations to ensure business continuity in the information
system;

MEEREPLNNERS - HEERRE/ BEENRE
RESUERENE REASRE $41u%?¥%§@
i

Continuously increasing the publicity of information security
and creating a cultural atmosphere of information security,
regularly checking the implementation of information security
strategies and continuously optimizing the construction of
information security system

REMARER2 %meﬁixmﬁﬁoﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ'fﬁfﬁhmy%%%ﬁ

Accelerating automation and digitalization construction, and
creating the value of informatization construction; and

MREBDCEGFEER  ERESERNEEAE: R

Strengthening protective measures on internal and external
network security and abilities to prevent viruses. The Group
has passed the ISO 27000 certification to ensure the
information security and business system security of the
Company.

MEANBBREZENERRRASHE8 ) A5ECER
IS0 270003 * REARARER2EEXBERLS -

Target risk trend
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Group’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

AEETERR IREHREERR BEERER

Overseas Investment Risks:

BHRERR -

- Differences in the politics, laws, technologies, - Consolidating the level of international operations;
societies and cultures in international operations - AEEE(LESKE
may result in low efficiency in overseas investment
management and failure in investment to the - Strengthening the summary of overseas operations experience
Company. and sharing such experience among each business segment;
- ARCEETHL A RBEHE XEEER - BUOSNEREREAL ZEXPHERARLE
MEE TRGENARAEIMREERRXETR
REXH - Continuously improving the systematization and
standardization of overseas investments in order to
continuously lower the overseas investment risks; and
- RBEUNEBMEZRIRABLER BEREEINRER
B R

- Strengthening the analysis of international situations and
investment environment and warning management in order
to continuously improve abilities in overseas investment
management.

- MEERVERREREANAREER  RERNEIMREE
B

=
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Group’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend
FrEEEEAR TERHREEL R BERRER
Market Risk Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Risks:
miEER PERRZRE :

- International exchange rate fluctuations may result - Improving the foreign exchange management system,
in significant foreign currency losses. Significant formulating the foreign exchange management system, and
floating interest rate liabilities may result in higher regularly paying attention to the trends of the changes of
finance costs if current interest rates increase. foreign exchange;

- BREXRIILEREONMEER - WRONEE - TENEERRZ  HENEEENE THEINEZDS
T BASFEN S AEATGHRENALEM - 7

- Establishing foreign exchange compensation mechanism and
forward management for auditing and quoting prices;

- BUNNERERS  RERBEFMNEE:

- Maximising natural hedging position by setting up offshore
factories or currency pairings in sales and procurement
contracts; and

- BERERIRBAHERRBAONEREY RERSENY
AR R

- Implementing centralised management of foreign exchange
funds of onshore companies, coordinating the foreign
exchange funds of various subsidiaries to implement
centralised foreign exchange payments, while operations such
as formulating the normalization system of exchange rate lock-
in and purchasing financial instruments for foreign exchange
hedging to reduce exchange rate exposure and lower the
operation impacts from the exchange rate fluctuation.

- BEENRANEZRETER GEENBLANEES
INEETXM - TRBVRERICHERH BECRIAL
TEXUASRENRSEEHA  BEEXRDHEENY
2,

o~
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Group’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IRBEHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETERR BEERER

Market Competition Risks:
THERFER

- The Group is operating in a highly competitive - Strengthening the competitiveness of global industrial bases;

industry, the uncertainty of the global trading
environment, the instability of the pandemic, the
changes in market demands and peers” conditions,
the sluggish growth of handset business, the
continuous expansion of the gap between supply
and demand, the failure of emerging businesses
to become a new development engine and the
intensified market competition might result in the risk
of lower earnings for the Company.
$%E%ﬁ§%ﬁ%#ﬁﬁ@’Aﬁ”%F%MTﬁ
Tl BEORE  TEEINRELRE LR
%%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬂ HEEEREREA  HREHH
PERAHBRSIE - TEREME - ARATR

EDH”& 5 B ¢E’]J_WA"A1 ©

BlERRERELHFH

Concentrating resources to accelerate the development of
advantageous businesses;

SYERMRERXHER

Focusing on industrial and terminal development trends in
a timely manner, increasing spending on the product R&D,
strengthening scientific and technological innovation and
improving the R&D and self-production capability of new
technologies and key components, laying out product lines
in advance, and enhancing product value in respond to the
changes in market demand at any time;
ERBITERLRERED  MAERAERAZM - B
RREN - RIGTRG - BREGOMENERE ) - RABBE
i RAEREE  DEREETSEE LN

Refining advantageous businesses and continuously improving
market share and profitability;

WEEZEE  BERTAEAERENEN

Enhancing the fine management level of existing businesses to
improve input and output;

BICREFBRALERKTY  RARAELE

Keeping close eyes on the market dynamics, continuously
exploring new markets or new customers, and maintaining
good relationships with customers;

BORETRDE  RERENTEINER  TEEPRER
HHAIERE

Innovating around the real needs of customers to realize the
business closed loop of innovation results and customer value;
and
EGEPEE
R R

BRETEH  ERAMAREZPEENEZHE

Continuously tracing customers ‘demands and developing
capacity plan to ensure product supply and keep inventory
within the safe standards.

THRAEPES  HIEEMRE DREERMLE THER
BHERZRER

RFEXRBE (£E) BRAF ¢ 2022 F#
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Group’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend
FrEEEEAR TERHREEL R BERRER
Customer Credit Risks:

EFERAR:

- Failure to timely detect the changes in global trading Improving the credit management system, regularly reviewing
environment, the credit issues that customers may the credit of customers, and adjusting the credit limit;
face and customers’ credit changes may lead to - EERFPEREREHE  UrHHEFETERTETARER
issues such as failure to collect payments for goods g2E:
and for stocked up goods.

- RRBERIEHREZREE  ZPUEESRER - Conducting risky customer screening management when
MERZPERE L RENEHEXDM  RA1E  choosing new customers, and tightening management on
ERANTERR - business terms and conditions for high-risk customers in the

early stage;
- BEMEPRENEREFHEEE SEREFHHENER
BT MBERE :

- Implementing customer classification management;
- ERRPOREE:

- Improving the precautionary mechanism of abnormal customer
credits;

- BILEPERERBEHN:

- Strengthening customer credit check and supervision;

- BILEPERRZEEE:

- Participating in account receivable insurance to reduce bad
debt losses; and

- PMENEFRRR - HOZREX R

- Strengthening the supervision and management of risk
indicators, making early warnings on the trend in credit
changes and analysing the reasons for trend changes.

- MARBRESEARER RARZEREDEY  LOHNED
2YRA -

P
( 92 Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Group’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IRBEHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETERR BEERER

Legal Risk
EEER

Risks of Laws and Regulations:

ERERER

- The uncertainty of international trading environment, - Expanding internal audit team and legal team, and also hiring

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has carried out
a review of, and the Board has received a confirmation from the
Management on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

or non-compliance with applicable laws, local
regulations and compliance responsibilities where
the Groups has legal entities, such as trade control,
anti-monopoly, anti-unfair competition, labour usage,
intellectual property rights, omittance or untimely
identification domestic and international laws and
regulations, policies and other requirements and
insufficient implementation of the relevant policies,
may cause the Group to suffer from severe penalties
or even subject to legal proceedings, causing
adverse impact on the public image of the Group.

ERESRENTREN AT ETERZR  BE
FERNETRANSREE MESEH RE
B RAEEHRT SBAI A3EES JHE
RINERER - BRREMZRBRIER - FRE -
RERFREENL B EnrSEEERER
g EEEBEEND  HAEELARVRENTH

B/
ga.

external excellent lawyers, law firms and compliance advisors
for consultation in order to seek legal advice and review the
conditions for compliance;

- BRRUENERREEEN ARZRIIEAEM 26

BRRAREBR DEARESE SRERLREARRTA
RER

- Promulgating trade compliance system, and further optimizing

the compliance system of each business segment and
department and embedding it into the implementation of
business operation;

- BREZAANE  LE-SREESZNURIFLARE

RAXHETER

- Strengthening the management of all types of business

information of the Company, relying on informatization for
screening all types of messages;

- MARREEBEXEREE  KERSLHRBERETH

5

- Optimizing the intellectual property management system and

building an overseas intellectual property litigation system to
predict intellectual property risks in advance;

- BINSERERRE AREINZERFLRE RAEH

RBERER

- Improving the whistleblowing platform and strengthening the

compliance publication; and

- TERRTRUNBAREE R

- Proactively monitoring and preparing for global and local

changes in regulations that may affect the Group, so as to
improve the mechanism of rapid response and emergency
handling.

- EBRERNEEEUIEYELEENZRRIABEERIE

5 TERERENEZRERN -

BHE-_ZT-—_F+-A=+—HILEE &x&
ECEMEZEEeCNSEEEHASENR
BEIE R NI RS A IR RER

HE=E

control system of the Group. No significant matters of concern were EUWEEREMEEFINEEZEIE - A5E
identified by the Board. The Group has not identified any emerging R-ZE - —FWRFREMEHEEFEAFE
risks that had significant impacts on the operations in 2022. BT B

—
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Major Initiatives for 2023

In 2023, the Group’s main focuses will continue to be on:

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(Vi

=

(vii

(ix)

(94

enhancing internal control and strategy management system
and monitoring the situations of the key risks in each business
segment and department in order to manage the strategic risks of
the Group;

further expanding the management and control intensity of KRI
by each business segment and department, and optimizing the
precautionary effects of KRI on business, and enhancing the risk
warning and improvement of the operation results;

further expanding the baseline management of KRI indicators
and industry benchmarking by each business segment and
department, and further improving and optimising various early
warning indicators;

dynamically identifying the risks that are faced by each business
segment and department, continuing to carry out in-depth
normalized and dynamic risk management, and continuously
promoting the implementation of the risk response plans;

continuing to promote the timeliness and closed-loop management
of the risk register to solidify the risk management experience and
form the risk case register and share it;

incorporating risk management into performance evaluation
by each business segment and department, and continuously
promoting the optimization and improvement of key improvement
projects;

continuing to promote the integration of risk management and
businesses, and increasing the innovation of risk management by
each business segment and department;

optimizing an intelligent risk management system; and
continuously empowering the risk management to enhance the

awareness and sense of commitment in risk management of the
Group.

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

E_=FXEHKE

ZEC=F AEBETRERBESNE

(i)

(iv)

ﬂﬂ%ﬁm*ﬁﬁﬂ ERBERRS  BEEX
BREZEXDMMIMPINER - AEE
K%I%ﬁfﬂ%ﬂM :

BEEXDBMEFIE - FBAKRIEZEN
B - BAEKRIEEBREYR - RILETHE
REMRIEEENE

RE X

EEXE D BMEPTE — HIEAKRIEIRELR
BEMTEYFE  E—FRAZTEBEER
RE(CBE

& F 5K o0 BF A ER T Bh 28 58 ) T B A LR
%%,E/%TU\TELEJ—LFﬁ BEEL - @bet”q
- FEHE AL PR A BT

BEEERMEMFEREN  BFREE
HE SRR ETEL - FREREHF
ROPELDZF

B EE A ERFT B B IR AR B
%o FEMEEERETEE R E

(vii) X%%/\‘MH*EF%—%ZE?ELH R IR B
HEE - MARBRERAIF

(vii) BEEREES 2L AR5

(x) FHEETREKREREE  NIEeAEEY

RBRERNEE R o
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has set up various whistleblowing channels, and the Audit
Committee and the internal audit department are delegated to be
in charge of each of the channels. The Group has formulated the
Whistleblowing Instructions and Rewards and Protection Measures
(ERIRAMMEER) - [R7E

rewards and whistleblowing protection. The Company has established

£31%)) to clarify the policies on whistleblowing

strict confidentiality measures and procedures to keep the information
of the whistleblowers (especially the information related to personal
privacy) as well as the relevant information provided, confidential. The
Company will make every effort to protect the personal and property
safety of the whistleblowers, and take various protection measures
based on the whistleblowers’ opinions. For any violations of laws, the
Company will assist the whistleblowers to take actions for the legal
liabilities against the corresponding persons.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has formulated the Anti-Corruption Policy €& &35 H|E))
to prevent and control various corruption and fraud incidents such
as commercial bribery, commercial benefit transmission and financial
embezzlement. During the year of 2022, the Group had provided the
trainings related with anti-corruption to Directors and employees in
key sensitive positions, in order to strengthen their awareness of anti-
corruption. For connected transactions, the Group has established
R HHE)),

personnel in relevant positions to make declarations in relation to their

the Connected Transaction Policy (([§i& requiring
associates and/or related persons. Among them, each personnel with
management title of deputy department head and above, and those
occupying key sensitive positions have to sign an Anti-Corruption
Guarantee (R ESRFEZ)). The employee occupying a key sensitive
position also has to sign an Integrity Guarantee (BEZULEEFGEE))
and a system involving regular rotation and integrity reports has been
implemented to strengthen the internal control. Suppliers shall also
sign the Undertaking for Operating with Integrity (FR{S&ELEGEE))
and make declarations in relation to their associates and/or related
persons.

TEERRE

BEWMEE

AEBERIZEBERRE  SREBEKZE
SRAMEFHER - AREHE(EREAMN
LR - REHDE) - AR REE L BRRE
HE - ARAEHIEBREWREERMET
HRBHRANEE (RIS R BE AR
AR) ARREENEBERS TUARE - AR
ARENREERANAT BELZE IR
BEREBANERREDNZBERERE o FNEE
LR RRARBHHERAETHEERAED
ERBIE -

RES

AEECHE(RESHE) - AR S
HE BEMNRRE  MBRHEIEER
MBFEEH - BRZZZZFFAN - A5EH
ERNHERGRELABRKRESHEBNE
gl REERESEH - StHEERS - A&
EHECEEXZHE)  BERBMELASE
TTHMBAR, HEEEALTRR  ERERBT
R & A E S Ef R B R SRR L A B %
AIAREEREE)  BRBEREUABETE
RIKRBRMEAKE) - T HmmE T RR
FAMRAEBEE - HER BRI (HER
EERHE)  WETHBAKR HEEEA LR
-

~
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group deeply knows that enterprise is not an organization only for
maximising its own interests, but also an important driver to facilitate
wealth accumulation of the whole society, advance social civilisation
and promote the sustainable development of the environment. The
Management pays high attention to corporate social responsibilities.
The Management strictly monitors the development,
and results of various business departments of the Group, in which the
environmental, social and governance standards have been integrated

implementation

into their daily operating activities. Details are set out in the 2022 ESG
report.

CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS REGARDING
PRICE SENSITIVE AND/OR
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has developed a system with established policies,
processes and procedures across all relevant segments and
departments for complying with the disclosure obligations regarding
price sensitive and/or inside information. The system continues to
be effective. The Company will continue to further enhance its roles
in the business operations, development of the Company and new
regulations and laws with great effort.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
for its Directors. The insurance covers the corresponding costs,
charges, expenses and liabilities for legal action against them arising
out of corporative activities.

CHANGES OF THE CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT OF THE COMPANY

In view of the No.
Company has adopted the amended and restated Articles
of Association as the Company’'s Articles of Association.

134 amendments to the Listing Rules, the

The latest version of the Articles of Association is available
on the websites of the Company (www.sunnyoptical.com)
and the HKEXnews of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

p—
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SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Company is committed to creating channels of communication
between the Directors, senior Management and investors, maintaining
close contact with all the Shareholders through a variety of channels
and promoting the communication with investors. The Chairman of
the Board would ensure the appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with the Shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole. The Company has adopted
an updated Shareholders’ communication policy (the “Shareholders’
Communication Policy”) on 28 December 2021 which is
available on the website of the Company (www.sunnyoptical.com),
to formalise and facilitate an effective and sound communication
between the Company and the Shareholders and other stakeholders.
The Company considers that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
facilitated effective communication between the Company and the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2022 by the following
main effective communication channels with the Shareholders:

Investors’ Meetings

Investor presentations are held by the Group in respect of its
annual results and interim results. In addition, the Group’s senior
Management and personnel from investor relations management
department hold meetings with investors. Investors are provided with
the latest information of the Group, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The Group keeps close contact with the investors.

In the year of 2022, given by the travel restrictions because of
COVID-19, the Company held virtual investor meetings in relation
to 2021 annual results announcement and 2022 interim results
announcement, an AGM and the annual investor day event.
Meanwhile, the Company attended numerous virtual and physical
investor meetings, so as to keep close communication with the
investors.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM is an important platform for the Shareholders to participate
in discussions, facilitating the communications between the
Management and the Shareholders. The AGM is held once a year,
being publicly accessible to all the Shareholders. The Group’s senior
Management answers any questions that Shareholders have in the
meeting and the external auditor and legal adviser attend the AGM
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as well. The chairman of the general meeting would ensure that an
explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for conducting a
poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll.

The attendance of each Director at the AGM held in 2022 is as
follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Wang Weniian (Honorary Chairman) EXELRE (EEFE)
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) EEBSYE (EE)

Mr. Sun Yang Bk e

Mr. Wang Wenijie FEXREAE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun TSER S E

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRIP4

Mr. Zhang Yuging RRESTAE

Ms. Jia Lina (Note 2) EREMz L (FFE2)

Note:

1. The meeting was attended by the Directors themselves, and not by an
alternate.

2. Ms. Jia Lina was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 January 2023.

Apart from AGM, any one or more Shareholders at the date of deposit
of the requisition holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. No EGM
was held in 2022.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Act
or the Articles of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene an EGM following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

/"
(98

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FORNFARERF - YEZRRBBAURETR
FOREVE(TERR o

EEFEHER B FRANRRATAR
BRI T -

AGM
No. of attendance (Note 1)/
No. of meeting

BERBFRE
HERE (BEE1),
ERRE

1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
N/A AN

GEE

1. BEFRORFHUFEEHE  MIFMKREELE -

2. BEMEIR-_Z-_=F—-F-BEZETARBL
FERITES -

BRIREBEFAKEIN  —BHZERERERE
HEBTLDRMBERARGBBREAS LIREE
MHOARBBERFTBRA+DZ—HRE - B
REERAAAREFEXAFAMERLEDS
ko BREFERABERMEETHEMNES
REBARRENAE ([RRFIKRE]) - =
T HFUEAHRRERNRS o

FMERERARERERMAL BEAFFRE
RERARE LEBRENRER - ARHFRER
B IR AT SRR R BRI | — B PTI AR A B
BERFFRIAE ©



Corporate Governance Report

All matters proposed to the Shareholders for approval shall be
submitted in separate resolutions and resolved by way of poll at the
general meeting. The procedures of conducting a poll are explained
in details to the Shareholders by the Group prior to the voting,
to ensure the Shareholders are familiar with such arrangement.
Poll results will be published on the websites of HKEXnews of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group
(www.sunnyoptical.com).

The Group has also maintained the procedures for nomination of
director by the Shareholders, which has been published on the
Group’s website (www.sunnyoptical.com), to ensure the interests of
Shareholders.

Annual Reports, Interim Reports, Announcements
and Circulars

The Group issues its annual reports and interim reports after
publishing the annual results and the interim results in March and
August every year respectively, so as to periodically review the
development of the Group as well as to update the Shareholders with
its latest business information and market trends. In addition, the
Group explains to the Shareholders through announcements regarding
any major events or price-sensitive information. For any matters
requiring the approval of the Shareholders, the Group holds an EGM
according to the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and issues a circular prior to the specific date of the meeting,
allowing the Shareholders to have sufficient time to learn more about
the matters for making voting decisions. All annual reports, interim
reports, announcements and circulars are uploaded to the websites
of HKEXnews of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Group (www.sunnyoptical.com).
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The Group’s Website

The Group’s website (www.sunnyoptical.com) offers timely access to
the Group’s press releases and other business information. Meanwhile,
it provides Shareholders with the electronic version of the financial
reports, the presentation materials for investors, as well as the latest
news about the Group’s businesses, announcements and general
information, etc. To make contributions to environmental protection
and maintain effective communication with Shareholders, the Group
encourages all Shareholders to browse the Group’s information on the
website.

Investor Contact and Inquiries

The Group has a dedicated team to maintain contact with investors
and handle Shareholders’ enquiries which may be put to the Board for
discussion. Should you have any inquiries, please contact the Group’s
investor relations management department (Tel: +86-574-6253 0875;
+852-3568 7038; e-mail: iroffice@sunnyoptical.com).

On behalf of the Board
Ye Liaoning

Chairman and Executive Director

20 March 2023
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The Directors are pleased to present the 2022 annual report, including
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review

Confronted with recurrent outbreaks of COVID-19 around the world,
drastic changes in the global political and economic environment,
increasing downward pressure on the global economy, rising
costs of energy, logistics and raw materials, continuously weak
consumer demand and increasing fierce industry competition, yet the
overall industrial competitive advantages of the Group were further
consolidated by maintaining its strategic focus, growing despite the
challenges, expanding income sources and reducing costs. The details
of core businesses are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. A discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using certain
financial key performance indicators are set out in the sections
headed “Financial Summary” and “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” in this annual report.

Outlook and Future Strategies

Looking ahead to 2023, the Group will continue to explore new
potentials in its existing mature businesses and seek new opportunities
in emerging industries. In addition to increasing the volume, the Group
will make more efforts to promote the operational efficiency and
operational quality.

Directors’ Report
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Major Financial and Business Performance
Indicators

Major financial and business performance indicators of the Group
include revenue, gross profit margin, ratio of operating expenses,
profit for the year, return on equity, trade receivable turnover days,
trade payable turnover days, inventory turnover days and gearing
ratio, etc, whose details are set out in the sections “Financial

»oo«

Summary”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements” in this annual report.
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group puts great emphasis on environmental protection
and sustainable development, and several measures have been
implemented by the Group in order to strengthen the environmental
protection, including but not limited to:

1. Strengthen the management of pollution sources and take
effective precaution measures to reduce or avoid the impact of
wastewater, waste gas and solid waste on the environment;

2. Continuously improve production technology, strictly control
the production process, improve product yield rates and save
resources and energy as much as possible;

3. Strive to seek substitutes for hazardous and noxious substances
to make the Group’s products meet the requirements of
customers as well as the laws and regulations of importing
countries. The materials entering the Group must have green
products warranty certificates and testing qualified reports issued
by third-party testing agencies which are recognized by the
Group; and

4. Encourage the employees to raise environmental protection
awareness and master knowledge and skills in environmental
protection.

More details related to the environment policies and performance
of the Group are set out in a separate ESG report which could
be available on the website of HKEXnews of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Group
(www.sunnyoptical.com).

-
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations. Any failure to comply
with such requirements may result in termination of the operation
permit. The Group has allocated systems and human resources
to ensure continuing compliance with rules and regulations and
sound working relationships with regulators through effective
communications. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
has complied with the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”), the Companies Ordinance, the Restriction
of Hazardous Substances Directive (the “RoHS”) of the European
Union, the Regulation on Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemicals (the “REACH”) of the European Union, the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Contract Law and
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws, rules and regulations.

Principal Risks and Measures

In the course of business, the Group is exposed to a variety of
principal risks including business and strategy risk, operational risk,
market risk and legal risk. Details of the principal risks and controls
and treatment plans of the risks are set out in the section “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.

Important Events Since 31 December 2022

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 January
2023, the Subscription was completed.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 4 January
2023, 10 January 2023, 17 January 2023 and 18 January 2023, the
issuance of USD400,000,000 5.95% per annum sustainability-linked
bonds due 2026 was completed by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Directors, no
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since 31
December 2022.

Directors’ Report
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Relationships with Major Stakeholders

The Group’s success also relies on the support of major stakeholders
including employees, customers, suppliers, regulators and
Shareholders.

Employees

Employees are considered to be the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The purpose of human resource management
of the Group is to reward and praise the staff with excellent
performances through the provision of generous remuneration
package, the implementation of the comprehensive performance
evaluation system and the Restricted Share Award Scheme. Besides,
the Group formulates an appropriate training plan based on various
positions, duties and titles and provides certain opportunities and
platforms to assist the employees in developing and getting promoted
within the Group.

Customers

The major customers of the Group are vehicle equipment integrators,
vehicle manufacturers, VR/AR device manufacturers, handset camera
module manufacturers, handset manufacturers and so on. The Group
is committed to providing its customers with superior products and
services so as to strive for sustainable growth in respect of revenue
and profitability and to improve its status in the industry. The Group
has adopted various means to strengthen the communication with its
customers, and expanded different businesses to provide customers
with superior products and services so as to increase market shares
and improve market competitiveness.

>
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Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with the suppliers is essential to the
Group in respect of the tight supply chain and when facing business
challenges and regulatory requirements. It can achieve cost efficiency
and promote long-term commercial benefits. Major suppliers include
raw material suppliers, system and equipment suppliers, external
consultants providing professional services, suppliers of office supplies
or commodities and other business partners providing the Group with
value-added services.

Regulators

The Company is subject to the regulation of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Ministry
of Emergency Management of the PRC, State Administration for
Market Regulation and other relevant regulators. The Group expects
to ensure compliance with new rules and regulations as updated from
time to time.

Shareholders

The Group distributes certain dividends to the Shareholders in order
to reward their support after boosting its business development to
achieve the sustainable profit growth and taking into account the
capital adequacy level, the liquidity and the business expansion needs.

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income” in this annual report.

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
HKDO0.500 per share (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.439 per
share) payable on 28 June 2023 to all persons registered as holders
of shares on 31 May 2023.

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

HER

AEBEHEREFRIBE  SEHBEEMR
EERMAHEERBNEEZLRERE
B HAEARA RS MR EREREH S
T2HEFHEERMBHEER  ZRLREHR
fEm - REFXRBGOINEER - WAR MK
on LR R AR EIR R ERB AR
BRH -

EEME

AARZBEEFRBEETHERZEE -
AR PEESEERS BERMEEEE
BRRLkEMERREBEE - AEEHERR
85T N R AR A KRB o

M

KE

AEBREERHRUAERABERFNE -

WEEBEARTREKE - mEBEMRALESLR
BHEEZE%  KE—TERETFTREARFRRD
SRS

/u\JJ))E

AEERBE—FT_—_F+_A=1+—HL#HF
ENREHENAFREABEMEMEEK
mk BT e

EFEEFN T _ZFNA-T+/N\HBZER
—ZE-CFRACTHEEZHRGEEA
IR 3 R BAR% B =% 0.5008 7T (ISR ERLHA
R#0.4397T) °

R K S (£E) BRAT « 2002 5% (105)



Directors’ Report

EEEHE

In order to be qualified for receiving the dividend, the Register of
Members will be closed from 1 June 2023 to 7 June 2023, both days
inclusive. Shareholders should submit share certificates together
with transfer documents to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong at or before 4:30 p.m. on 31 May 2023.

In order to be qualified for attending the AGM to be held on 24 May
2023, the Register of Members will be closed from 19 May 2023 to
24 May 2023, both days inclusive. Shareholders should submit share
certificates together with transfer documents to the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong at or before 4:30 p.m.
on 18 May 20283.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Details of the Group’s transactions with its major customers and
suppliers during the year are set out below:

In 2022, the revenue from the largest customer accounted for
approximately 16.6% of the Group’s total revenue as compared to
approximately 20.4% of last year. In 2022, revenue from the top
five largest customers accounted for approximately 55.4% (2021:
approximately 61.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.

In 2022, the purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for approximately 9.5% (2021: approximately 16.2%) and the
aggregate purchases attributable to the top five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 40.8% (2021: approximately 52.4%) of
the total purchases of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company)
have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Act, amounted
to approximately RMB21,475.8 million (2021: approximately
RMB20,106.4 million).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made charitable
donations of RMB785,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning
Mr. Sun Yang
Mr. Wang Wenijie

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wenjian
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuging

Mr. Feng Hua Jun

Mr. Shao Yang Dong

Ms. Jia Lina (appointed on 1 January 2023)

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association,
at least one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company. A circular containing the explanatory statement on
repurchase by the Company of its shares, the biographical details
of the director candidates and the notice of AGM will be sent to
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory compensation.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the

Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of
appointment or re-appointment.

=
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN

SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of 7

the Listing Rules, were as follows:

=L

Mr. Wang Wenjian
EXERE

Mr. Ye Liaoning
535588 il

Mr. Sun Yang
Siad

Mr. Wang Wenjie
EXREE

Name of
corporation

EEER

The Company
AN

The Company
YN

The Company
AN

The Company
PN
The Company
ARF]

The Company
ARA]
The Company
AN

The Company
AN
The Company
AN

Long/short

position
%,/ KR
Long position
iR

Long position
R

Long position
iR

Long position
R
Long position
e

Long position
e
Long position

30

Long position
1R
Long position
A
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HEZER AR

EFmES AR

Number of
Type of interest CLHETCY
Rz 5l RGO EE
Trustee and beneficiary of a trust 389,091,927

(Note 1)
EREZFEARTRA (BFE1)
Beneficiary and founder of a trust 33,164,133
(Note 2)

FEER @ ARKA (H5E2)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) 203,782
BEaEE A (M33)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4) 389,091,927
FaXmA (Mi4)
Beneficial owner (Note 5) 2,332,752
BERER A (H5E5)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 6) 389,091,927
FEXmA (Mizte)
Beneficial owner (Note 7) 184,453
BaER A (MEE7)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 8) 389,091,927
EEXmA (MiF8)
Beneficial owner (Note 9) 1,617,604

fh

ExnfEAA (M)

ESREETHASERTNR

RZEBZZF+ZA=+—H  REEARGHZ
(BERHEED) F35215FBENZ LML
ﬁ SRR IR £ AR BIRT 8% 1 P A IR 2E SR AR

MAMEARAREBRIMNEEREE
TTE&AQ%E$AQ§EEH*@%% (&
RAEHREEED) EXVE) %%

- HHEAAX

Approximate

percentage of
shareholding

BEREBNE DL

35.47%

3.02%

0.02%

35.47%

0.21%

35.47%

0.02%

35.47%

0.15%

BN (£M) HRAA « 2022 558 (109)
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Notes:

M

-

(110

Mr. Wang Wenijian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited) and one of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.88% of the beneficial
interest. The Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire
issued share capital of Sun Ji Limited (“Sun Ji”), which owns 100.00%
equity interest in Sun Xu Limited (“Sun Xu”), which in turn owns 35.47% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian
is deemed to be interested in 389,091,927 shares held by Sun Xu under
the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is the beneficiary and founder of the Sun Guang Trust*.
The Sun Guang Trust* is the trust on the entire issued share capital of Sun
Guang Limited (“Sun Guang”), which owns 3.02% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjian is deemed to be
interested in 33,164,133 shares held by Sun Guang under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 203,782
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 8.64% of the beneficial interest.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. Accordingly, as a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun
Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed to be
interested in 389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,332,752 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.64% of the beneficial interests.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.
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(7) Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 184,453 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

(8) Mr. Wang Wenjie is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 4.82% of the beneficial interests. As
a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the equity
interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under the
SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn owns
389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder, Sun
Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijie is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

(9) Mr. Wang Wenijie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,617,604
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

*  The Chinese translation of Sun Guang Trust (‘3 X {55E”) is for identification
purpose only.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 December 2022.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 22 March 2010 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board adopted the
Restricted Share Award Scheme. Pursuant to the Restricted Share
Award Scheme, the Directors, all employees, senior staff, agents
and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries are entitled to
participate in this scheme.

The purposes of the Restricted Share Award Scheme are to assist the
Company in attracting new staff as well as motivating and retaining its
existing talents.
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The Restricted Share Award Scheme shall be effective from the
Adoption Date and shall continue in effect for a term of 10 years and
be managed by its administrative committee and the trustee. On 16
March 2020, the Board resolved to extend the period of the Restricted
Share Award Scheme for another ten years. As a result, the Restricted
Share Awards Scheme, which should have originally terminated on
21 March 2020, shall, unless terminated earlier by a resolution of the
Board, terminate on 21 March 2030.

Pursuant to the rules under the Restricted Share Award Scheme,
no shares shall be purchased, nor any amounts paid to the trustee
of the Restricted Share Award Scheme trust of the Company (the
“Trustee”) from which Restricted Shares may be granted to an eligible
participant pursuant to such scheme for the purpose of making such
a purchase, if as a result of such purchase, the number of Restricted
Shares administered under such scheme shall exceed in total 10% of
the Company’s issued share capital as at the Adoption Date (“Scheme
Limit”).

Since the Adoption Date to 31 December 2022, a total of 91,683,267
shares had been awarded under the Restricted Share Award Scheme
by the Company, representing approximately 9.17% of the Company’s
issued shares as at the Adoption Date. The total number of shares
available for being further awarded under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme is 8,316,733,
Company'’s issued shares as at the date of this annual report.

representing approximately 0.76% of the

The maximum number of Restricted Shares which may be granted to
an eligible participant under the Restricted Share Award Scheme at
any one time or in aggregate may not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date.

The administration committee under such scheme of the Company
shall cause to be paid to the Trustee the sum of the closing price of
the Shares as at the date on which the Restricted Share is, was or is
to be granted together with all related purchase expenses required for
the completion of the purchase of all the Restricted Shares from the
Company’s resources as soon as possible.

Details of the Restricted Share Award Scheme are set out in Note 43
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

(1 12 Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022

B I M AR 1) SR B St B B PR AN B AR AR AR - W0
BERTF BEEHEZESRXFTATHE -
RZEZEF=A+/"8  EFGREHRS
MR B EEIMHIRE R+ - Bt - ANjE
N2 ZERF=AZ T —BRIENRBIMERGD
REEEN _ZE=FTF=_A=_+—AKIL -
MRIFCESTERBRIBARLL ©

RIBR BB 22 R AT BIROARE - HEEE G
BRAEETEENRIERODBBEBN
R BAMARADHITRAN10% ([ 5 BIR
#) ALEBEEERD - FAERAANRE
PR I ME A 1) SR B AT BRI REA ([ ZFEA D)
ST ERIGRIA - itk - RBERD A ARIE A BE
AEMEERSEERTIEITEE -

BRMBE-_S-_—_F+-A=+—HL

RN AR R IR D SR E AT 81 2 IR R D
5 $£091,683,267% F (ERMNBEEBARF
BEITIRDA9.17% o RIEMR HIERR (D 42 E) 51
B E - EENARFRMN A £8,316,733
- AEARARAFERBHACZETRMD L
0.76% °

RIEBR B MR 5 EEN T BT M A BB EE L
B BEAREOBRFERD RS E TEH
BREMBBARRREEITRARN1% °

ARARBHAENERZEGAUARTEIR
BRAXFEANREE - BEXARKELER
HIERD & B &YW B E R STRRE B P A R
R AR B HBEBERX -

R &I M (0 BB R E Z FF IR E R AN F AR A B
TEHRKR M 743 -



Directors’ Report

EEEWE

As at 31 December 2022, details of movements of the granted, vested W_Z-~"F+-A=+—H  ARXFRER
and lapsed shares under the Restricted Share Award Scheme by the  #I1E ) EEIEH B TR Y « B8 LK H

Company were as follows: REB BT ¢
R #E
As at As at
Fair value 1 January Granted Vested Lapsed | 31 December
of each share 2022 during during during 2022
Date of grant (Note 1) (Note 2) the year the year the year (Note 2) | Vesting period
R=®=Z Hom-—&
gRRG 2 —A-8 +-ZA=1+-H
REHAH D AME (K1) (Wi 2) | REARE | REREE | RERXN (K 2)
HKD
BT
15 November 2017 140.10 105 - - - 105 From 14 April 2019 to
14 November 2020
S o e Rl = —Z-NERNATHEZE
2 RE+-ATHE
15 November 2018 75.85 521 - - - 521 From 14 April 2020 to
14 November 2020
ZZ-\E+-A+EE “RCREMATRAZR
“Z-RET-ATHA
15 April 2019 100.90 264,787 - (258,995) (5,792) - From 14 April 2021 to
14 April 2022
ZE-AEMATRA ZE--FMATHAEE
ZRC_EMATHA
2 July 2019 88.20 91,794 - (90,052) (1,290) 452 From 1 July 2021 to
1 July 2022
“2-AELAZR - -5tA-RZE
ke Sk o Bl =
15 May 2020 122.50 386,101 - (382,496) (3,605) - 14 April 2022
ZZCEFRATAHA “ECCFMATNA
2 July 2020 126.80 163,286 - (86,368) (1,147) 75,771 From 1 July 2022 to
1 July 2023
“Z-ZELACRA ZE-_FtA-RZE
ZEI=F+A-A
16 November 2020 153.40 157,553 - (146,627) (10,926) - 15 November 2022
ZEIEFT-ATRA ZRIZ&+—AThA
15 April 2021 180.30 852,111 - (422,521) (25,146) 404,444 14 April 2023
ZE--FMATHA ZEZ=FNATEA

B ERHE (£E) BRAT » 2022 3 113)
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Fair value

of each share

Date of grant (Note 1)
gREG 2
DAfE (W& 1)
HKD

BT

RHAH

As at

1 January

2022

(Note 2)
R-B=-—

—-A-H

(&t 2)

Granted
during
the year

RERRH

Vested
during
the year

RERER

Number of shares
REABE

As at

31 December

2022

(Note 2)
R-ZB-Z

t=A=t-H

(K3t 2)

Lapsed
during

the year Vesting period

REAXH

FEH

2 July 2021 236.60 185,116 - (63,027) (10,302) 111,787 From 1 July 2023 to
1 July 2024
S s = S s
“TMFEA-A
15 November 2021 230.00 384,790 - (175,634) (35,034) 174,122 14 November 2023
“E--F+-A+1H ZEC=f+—ATHmA
2,486,164 - (1,625,720) (93,242) 767,202
19 April 2022 (Note 3) 105.20 - 2,826,085 (139) (83,548) 2,742,398  From 14 November 2023 to
18 April 2025
“E-_FNATAIH ZEC=F+—-ATHAZE
(F3E3) “E-RFNATNR
4 July 2022 (Note 3) 119.50 - 453579 - (21,641) 431,938 From 03 July 2024 to
03 July 2025
ZEZZFEAMA “Z-E+A=RE
(FizE3) —E-RF+AZAH
15 November 2022 (Note 3) 97.90 - 1,020,293 - (7,050) 1,013,243 14 November 2024
ZEZZFT—-ATAA ZRIME+—ATHEA
(H37E3)
2,486,164 4,299,957 (1,625,859)  (205,481) 4,954,781
Notes: BisE -

(1) The fair value of the granted shares was measured on the basis of an

observable market price. For more details, please refer to Note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

(2) According to the Group’s internal policy, the shares have been granted to

the participants but not yet vested.

(8) The closing price of the shares immediately before 19 April 2022 was
HKD110.80; immediately before 4 July 2022 was HKD127.90; and
immediately before 15 November 2022 was HKD89.30.
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Details of the interest of the Directors, one top-paid non-Director HEZZE-_—F+-_A=+—ItFE H@EE

employee and other grantees in the granted, vested and lapsed shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below.

DIRECTORS
£
Ye Liaoning

E38

Sun Yang
s

Wang Wenijie
IR

Wang Wenjian
IxE

Date of
grant

RuiAM

19 April 2022

s

mA+NA

15 November 2022
—EoF
+-A+HA

19 April 2022
—E--F
mA+AE

15 November 2022
—E--F
+-A+HA

19 April 2022
—E-CE
mA+AAE

19 April 2022

—s

mA+AA
19 April 2022
—EC-CF
mA+NA
19 April 2022

s

mATAR

Number of
granted
shares

Bt
RG#E

35,102

11,935

46,803

11,935

35,102

12,286

35,102

12,286

Vesting
period

18 April 2025
“E-RfF
mA+/\H

14 November 2024
—ZomE

T-A+tmA

18 April 2025
“ZE-RF
mA+AR

14 November 2024
“FomE
+—A+mA

18 April 2025
“E-RE
mA+AR

18 April 2024
“TomE
mA+AR

18 April 2025
S
mA+AR

18 April 2024
“IomE
mA+AR

2 —EREHFHMHERS GFES) REMERA
BB BB R R RO RIS T -

Number of shares
REAHE

As at As at

1 January Vested Lapsed | 31 December

2022 during during 2022

(Note 1) (Note 1)
R-B-=f R=B=Z=
—A—H +=BA=t+-H
(BirE1) GESY

the year the year

RENER | REAXX

25,028 (22,245) - 49,820
25,028 (22,245) - 61,521
27,053 (23,590) - 50,851
27,053 (23,590) - 50,851

BF BRI (EF) ERAF » 2022 £ 115)
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Number of shares
REABE

As at As at
Number of 1 January Vested Lapsed | 31 December
Date of granted Vesting 2022 during during 2022

grant shares period (Note 1) the year the year (Note 1)
R-ZB-Z R-ZBE-Z

i —A-H +ZB=t-H

RitiB 8 (1) | RERGR | REREN GESY

TOP-PAID NON-DIRECTOR INDIVIDUAL(S) (NOTE 2)
BEFMAL (FEE) (KE2)

Employee A 19 April 2022 58,504 18 April 2025 17,663 (15,849) - 67,923
EEA —F-C —ECRE
MA+AR mA+AR
19 April 2022 7,605 18 April 2024
—TC-CF —E-ME
MA+AR mA+AR
OTHER GRANTEES
HitERA
Employee group one 19 April 2022 2,583,295  From 14 November 2,364,339 (1,518,340 (205,481) 4,673,815
EE/ME— 2023 to 18 April 2025
—E-C “E-CF
MA+AR T—RAtHmAZ
ZZCREMATAR
Employee group two 4 July 2022 453,579 From 3 July 2024
BE/MAZ to 3 July 2025
ZECCF ZEIMELAZRE
+AmA S g
Employee group three 15 November 2022 996,423 14 November 2024
EE/ME= —T-- —E-NE
T—A+hA T—A+HEA
4,299,957 2,486,164  (1,625,859) (205,481) 4,954,781
Notes: BisE -

(1) According to the Group’s internal policy, the shares have been granted to (1) RIEASKEMHRIEEK - ZRHEBHEERL T2
the participants but not yet vested. HEREKEBEHORN

(2) The five highest paid individuals of the Group included four Directors (2) HEZTZ_F+_A=1+—HIFE  £~5E

(.e. Ye Liaoning, Sun Yang, Wang Wenjie and Wang Wenjian) and the FEBERTMATEENRES (BIEEE - &
Employee A for the year ended 31 December 2022. Details of their R EXAREXE)R—BEEA ZEAL
emoluments are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements HIB & B HRAF RS B MK EE14 -

in this annual report.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other corporation.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company is empowered by the applicable Cayman lIslands
Companies Act and the Articles of Association to repurchase its
own shares subject to certain restrictions and the Board may
only exercise this power on behalf of the Company subject to any
applicable requirements imposed from time to time by Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. There was no purchase, sale, redemption or writing-
off by the Company or its subsidiaries, with the exception of those
purchased by the trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme,
of the Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31 December
2022.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions “in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the
Company, its holding company, its controlling shareholder, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

There were no contracts of significance (including the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries) between the Company, or
one of the subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No management contract in force during the year for the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Group’s
business subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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DISCLOSURE OF SUBSTANTIAL FTERFAERFEE

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES

RZBEZZF+_A=+—H BEFEMZF
M- TIATHREREBRBERE S EMZEST1
E(BENPEBRN)EXVIHE2RID IR T
AMARA B R E AR B IR S ABRERR D
FHERERIAE  IRB(EHFRIEK
B 336 I ERARRATHF 2 Z L MAFRT
AN ERERIOAR

As at 31 December 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons or institutions have beneficial interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long position/

Approximate

short position/ Number of | percentage of
lending pool Type of interest share | shareholding
wr/ ke RS
a8 AHEHARG | EEER RHEAE Botk
Sun Xu Long position Beneficial owner 389,091,927 35.47%
518 wE ERBEAA
Sun Ji Long position Interest in a controlled corporation 389,091,927 35.47%
(Note 1)
SRR HaE REE R (M)
Mr. Wang Wenjian Long position Beneficial owner (Note 2) 203,782 0.02%
ITXELESE A BEanEA A (M2)
Long position Beneficiary and founder of a trust 33,164,133 3.02%
(Note 3)
e EREX A RAILA (HFE3)
Long position Trustee and beneficiary of a trust 389,091,927 35.47%
(Note 4)
e EREXFEARXBA (HiT4)
TMF Trust (HK) Limited Long position Trustee of a trust (Note 5) 389,091,927 35.47%
EREFERY (B8)BR e EFERFEA (HI5E5)
N
Mr. Ye Liaoning Long position Beneficial owner (Note 6) 2,332,752 0.21%
ERELE e EnfEA A (FiiEe)
Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 7) 389,091,927 35.47%
HE ErEX@mA (ME7)
Mr. Sun Yang Long position Beneficial owner (Note 8) 184,453 0.02%
BokLs WA BEanEA A (H58)
Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 9) 389,091,927 35.47%
e ErERmA (ME9)
Mr. Wang Wenijie Long position Beneficial owner (Note 10) 1,617,604 0.15%
EXARESE HE EmEA A (FiFE10)
Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 11) 389,091,927 35.47%
e EREX @A (MiEE11)

P
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Notes:

M

As Sun Ji owns more than one-third of the voting power of general
meetings of Sun Xu, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in the 389,091,927
shares held by Sun Xu under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 203,782
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is the beneficiary and founder of the Sun Guang Trust*.
The Sun Guang Trust* is the trust of the entire issued share capital of Sun
Guang, which owns 3.02% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjian is deemed to be interested in 33,164,133
shares held by Sun Guang under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited) and one of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.88% of the beneficial
interest. The Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire
issued share capital of Sun Ji, which owned 100.00% equity interest in
Sun Xu, which in turn owns 35.47% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares held by Sun Xu under the SFO.

As TMF Trust (HK) Limited is one of the two trustees (together with Mr.
Wang Wenijian) of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust, TMF Trust
(HK) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 389,091,927 shares held by
Sun Xu under the SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,332,752 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 8.64% of the beneficial interest. As
a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the equity
interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under the
SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn owns
389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder, Sun
Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.
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Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 184,453 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.64% of the beneficial interests.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenijie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,617,604
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 4.82% of the beneficial interests. As
a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the equity
interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under the
SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn owns
389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder, Sun
Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijie is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

The Chinese translation of Sun Guang Trust (“BJ{E7E") is for identification
purpose only.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of any

other person who had an interest or a short position in the Shares

and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity

derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2022.

-
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established connected transaction policy to
strengthen internal control of the Company, protect the legitimate
interests of the Shareholders and improve the corporate governance
structure. This policy has defined the scopes of connected parties and
connected transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules. It also
requires the Company to disclose the related information of connected
transactions, conduct the annual audit of continuing connected
transactions and follow the principles of the connected transactions
decision-making and abstaining rules.

The Audit Committee shall, in accordance with its roles and functions,
review whether the arrangements for connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions are fair and reasonable. The Audit
Committee judges whether the connected transaction is beneficial
to the Company according to objective criteria, and if necessary, it
will hire professional appraisers or independent financial advisers to
provide advice. A Director who has any interest in the connected
parties shall abstain when the Board votes on the matter. If necessary,
an independent board committee shall be established to evaluate and
approve the conflict transactions, and the members of the committee
shall not have any independent non-executive Director who has
significant interests in the relevant transactions or arrangements.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company review the
Group’s continuing connected transactions every year and confirm
that such transactions meet the following requirements: 1. concluded
in the Group’s daily businesses; 2. conducted in accordance with
normal or better commercial terms; and 3. conducted in accordance
with the agreement on relevant transactions, with fair and reasonable
terms and in line with the overall interests of Shareholders. The
Company has also hired an external auditor to review the Group’s
continuing connected transactions. As disclosed under Note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report, none of
the related party transactions entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 constituted a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not entered into any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

No Director or chief executive of the Company holds any interests in
entities which compete with the Group in any aspects of its business.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of its
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on the basis
of their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regards to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.
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The Group operates a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme
under rules and regulations of MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years as at 31 December 2022.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make
the specified contributions.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total amounts contributed
by the Group to the schemes and costs charged to the consolidated
income statement represent contribution payable to the schemes by
the Group at designated rates according to the rules of the schemes.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme operated by the Group are
set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within knowledge of its Directors at the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte as the
auditor of the Company. There was no change in the auditor of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective
offices or trusts, except such as they shall incur or sustain through
their own fraud or dishonesty.

By order of the Board of Directors
Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong
20 March 2023

—
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sunny
Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
131 to 306, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

R EZ =R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B EBREREER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables & 5 & Ug k18 Y i B 514

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounted to RMB6,334,911,000, which
represented approximately 14.7% of total assets of the
Group. Details of trade receivables are set out in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.
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As disclosed in Note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on
provision matrix through grouping of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:
BMEE ZEBFIENRET EEBERNT -

e Understanding the internal controls related to
providing allowance under ECL model;

o THREBRHESEBEENTHREHEBNREE

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at 31
December 2022, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with supporting
documents;

o AIFHEEERARERBEEBERFEARNENNTE
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e Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022, including their
identification of credit impaired trade receivables, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining trade debtors into different categories in
the provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision matrix
(with reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information); and
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e FEvaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in Notes 25 and
37(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

-
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B R

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2023

-
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEBEEkEMZERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &2 —F = — 41+ —-H=+—HIFFF

2022 2021
—E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFT
Revenue YA 5,6 33,196,937 37,496,852
Cost of sales $5& KA (26,591,940) (28,760,659)
Gross profit EF 6,604,997 8,736,193
Other income E iz 7(a) 697,707 689,949
Other gains and losses H iz 518 7(b) (193,460) 99,065
Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
REREEREENGENRESRSE  HRED (10,570) (5,182)
Selling and distribution expenses $H%& & 7 #5732 (352,785) (274,105)
Research and development expenditure 2 2 (2,803,398) (2,642,196)
Administrative expenses 17 Ef 3% (928,579) (757,592)
Share of results of associates 7155 & A 7 24 19 (5,996) 19,007
Finance costs gl & A 8 (292,937) (230,252)
Profit before tax B i A% 2,714,979 5,634,887
Income tax expense FT15HiF % 9 (240,831) (578,972)
Profit for the year F & 11 2,474,148 5,055,915

Other comprehensive (expense) income Eftt 2 H (Fix) W
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
TEEN I EERmAER -
Fair value (loss) gain on investments in equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), net of income tax
BAREFARMPENRS ([RALBEFAHEEZEEE]) &)
RETARENAAE (BE) W - HRMES (20,787) 2,808
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or l0ss:
BEREH P EEBmER -
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations

BERIINEBEENER =5 20,956 (4,271)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year FRE b2 HE Uz (Bx%) 169 (1,463)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNZHKNH L 2,474,317 5,054,452
Profit for the year attributable to: JE15F R A :

Owners of the Company A2 & iX & 2,407,796 4,988,007

Non-controlling interests FE#2R&#E %% 66,352 67,908

2,474,148 5,055,915

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: fEhF RN mE KN BE
Owners of the Company A2 & iX & 2,409,478 4,987,488
Non-controlling interests FE#2R%#E 2% 64,839 66,964
2,474,317 5,054,452
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) T &EF| — X (ARED) 13 220.26 456.52
- Diluted (RMB cents) - #E(ARED) 13 220.15 455.93

=
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRIR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 R =—ZE_—4#+_H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ REI&EE

31/12/2022

RMB’000
AR®T T

31/12/2021
—E-—F

+=HA=+—8

RMB’000
ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - #23 &% & 15 10,119,846 8,303,229
Right-of-use assets ff FEE &E 16 612,062 504,684
Investment properties & #13 17 35,502 40,380
Intangible assets & & &= 18 250,715 306,926
Interests in associates KB A AIHYAE R 19 200,645 201,641
Deferred tax assets #EIEFiIE & E 20 257,178 255,651
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
FUEEYE  HBERBEEIANZRE 21 489,947 471,595
Equity instruments at FVTOCI {2 AR Bt AR 2 E WA xR TH 22 168,160 178,762
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
BARBEFABR([RAAEFABRE D WemEE 23 19,518 19,518
Time deposits & HF X 27 200,000 500,000
Goodwill £ 2,119 2,119
12,355,692 10,784,505
CURRENT ASSETS HiB&E
Inventories 17 & 24 4,720,913 5,481,858
Trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 R H At fE W IR R IE T RIE 25 7,205,110 7,448,385
Receivables at FVTOCI %A it E&H AH A 2 Uk 2= 7Y & WG IE 26 548,956 =
Tax recoverable A] Y [a] 7 18 28,120 =
Derivative financial assets $T4 & @& & 28 29,681 27,237
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BT ABTMNEMEE 23 10,086,415 8,314,143
Amount due from a related party B —&RHE A 5078 42(c) 8,256 327
Time deposits & 877K 27 500,000 =
Pledged bank deposits 2 iR 1T1F R 27 9,775 18,292
Short term fixed deposits %2 Hi7F Hi7F 27 475,176 1,093,914
Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 NI &5 (EEH 27 7,033,194 5,605,179
30,645,596 27,989,335
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 R =—ZE - —4#+_H=+—H

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
—E-—F

+=HA=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

CURRENT LIABILITIES B8 &

Trade and other payables & 5 K i & {51 18 29 12,917,286 9,868,687
Amounts due to related parties FE{~EiE A + 7B 42(c) 9,992 6,934
Derivative financial liabilities $74 & g & (& 28 17,655 40,446
Contract liabilities A4 & & 30 166,096 178,101
Tax payable FE{f 718 - 188,022
Bank borrowings — current portion $R17f5 & — ENEA#E 5 31 1,989,981 1,538,897
Lease liabilities — current portion A& & & — BNEAEE 32 51,378 46,271
Deferred income — current portion &I A — BIEFER D 33 6,446 6,099
Bonds payable FE{f{& % 34 4,178,082 =

19,336,916 11,873,457

NET CURRENT ASSETS #REBEI&EEFE 11,308,680 16,115,878
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES Z&ERAB ARG 23,664,372 26,900,383
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES B8 &
Deferred tax liabilities #EIEFTIE B & 20 850,321 1,015,890
Derivative financial liabilities $T4 4 @l & (& 28 - 5,057
Long term payables & 8ffE (S FA 29 122,777 172,044
Bank borrowings — non-current portion ST E — JEENHAZL 5 31 30,000 700,000
Lease liabilities — non-current portion T & & & — JEENEIEE 32 187,938 107,999
Deferred income — non-current portion IEIEUT A — FEBIHEER 33 290,950 188,504
Bonds payable E{J &5 34 - 3,815,623
1,481,986 6,005,117
NET ASSETS &&E F& 22,182,386 20,895,266
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B A& &
Share capital %7 35 105,163 105,163
Reserves & 21,733,224 20,482,909
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 &) I 5 B (5 #E 25 21,838,387 20,588,072
Non-controlling interests FE{2 M4 25 343,999 307,194
TOTAL EQUITY ##4 %8 22,182,386 20,895,266

The consolidated financial statements on pages 131 to 306 were #NF131E306BE 2 RAMBHMERLESTER
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 —ZT-=F=A -+ HH#LERZENZ  FHh

March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: TIEEREEE
Mr. YE Liaoning Mr. SUN Yang
ERESLE BREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
FE EF

=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
mERRBHR

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRARRER
Shares
held under Share
Statutory | Discretionary share award Non-
Share Special surplus surplus Other award scheme FVTOCI | Translation Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserves scheme reserve éese:\g reserve profits | Sub-Total interests
D
EARD HALH
iz B amin [ moam | 2mk . ‘ .
B | GhIRE | EREE BHRE | RMRE | SEORG | HERE RERE | REEA t| #ERER L
RMB'000 | RMB’000 RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB’000
ARETR | ARETR ARETR | ARETR | ARETR n | ARETR | ARBTR | AR®TR | AR®TR | AR®TR
(Note a) (Note ¢) )
(Fiita) )
At 1 January 2021
RZF=-%-A-A 105,163 141,172 31,003 916 442,019 (257,624) 96,631 130 (38,331) 16,076,145 16,597,224 208893 16,826,117
Profitfor the year £ = - - - - - - - - 4988007 4,988,007 67908 5,055,915
Other comprehensive income (expense) for
the year EMEM2ENE (%) - - = = = = = 2,808 (3.327) = (519) (944) (1,463)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for
the year FM2EWE (%) 48 - - - - - - - 2,808 (8327) 4988007 4,987,488 66964 5,054,452

Purchase of shares under share award

scheme (Note 43) REZR I BT EEE

BOIGRTR) - - - - - (212,183 - - - - (212,183 - (212,183
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (Note 43) R LNEREER(A

RITE3R (Hit43) - - - - - - 188278 - - - 188218 - 188218
Shares vested under share award scheme

(Note 43) R % B EIZBHR
(Hi43)

Capital contribution from non-controling

interests ('NCI') R ([ 2

&) BEHTE = = - - - - - - - - - 27,110 27,110
Acquisition of additional interest of a

subsiciary from NCI B3 i e —

= = = = = 145,308 (165,425) = = 20,117 = = =

FHELRGEIN ER - (994) - - - - - - - - (994) (476) (1.470)
Dividends paid (Note 12) 2 (HfE12) - - - - - - - - - (074,008 (974,009) - (74003
Dividends received under share award

scheme BERAREEMRNRSE - - - - - - - - - 2,062 2,062 = 2,062
Dividends paid to NCI
SR FFEERERNRS - - - - - - - - - - - (1,297) (15,297)
Appropriation 55 - - - - 6,113 - - - = (6,113) = = =
At 31 December 2021
RZB-—4+-A=t-A 105163 140,178 31,003 916 448132 (34499) 119484 2938 (41,658 20,106415 20588072 307,194 20,895,266
Profitfor the year & /&7 - - - - - - - - - 2407796 2407796 66,352 2474148
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the

year FREM 2T (F) hig - - - - - - - (20,787) 22,469 - 1,682 (1513) 169
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the

year FA2E (F%) W@ - - - - - - - (20,787) 2469 240779 2409478 64,839 2474317

Purchase of shares under share award

scheme (Note 43) REM BT EIBE

it (Hizk43) - - - - - (358,857 = = = - (358857) - (358857)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (Note 43) B2 bR EE R

XT38 (Hi43) - - - - - - 248399 - - - 243399 - 243309
Shares vested under share award scheme

(Note 43) R ERIA BTzt 2B RHR

(Hizk43) - - - - - 194,342 (210,839 - - 16,497 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest of a

subsiciary from NCI B3 i e —

FHEARNEI ER - - - - - - - - - - - (13,068) (13,068)
Dividends paid (Note 12) 2k (HiE12) - - - - - - - - - (1,047,715)  (1,047,715) - (1,047,715)
Dividends received under share award

scheme R EE3HHARINRE = - - - - - - - - 4010 4010 - 4010
Dividends paid to NCI
TR FFEERERNRE - - - - - - - - - - - (14,966) (14,966)
Recognition of general risk reserve T2 —f%

Bl - - - - 2% - - - = 4 = = =
Disposal of an equity instrument at FVTOCI
HERAA B A2 ENENESTA - - - - - - - ) - % - - -
Appropriation 8 - - - - 11,188 - - - - (11,18) - - -
At 31 December 2022
RZBZZ§+-A=1-A 105,163 140,178 31,003 916 459,344 (489,014) 152,044 (17.872) (19,189) 21,475,814 21,838,387 343999 22,182,386
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Notes:

(@)

The amount recorded in the special reserve was resulted from:

(i)  the capital contribution by/distribution to the Company in relation to
the acquisitions/disposals of equity interests in subsidiaries;

(i) the difference between the net carrying amounts of equity interests
in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares of their respective
holding companies arisen in share exchange transactions during the
group reorganisation; and

(iii) the adjustment of non-controlling interests in relation to the deemed
acquisitions/disposals of equity interests in subsidiaries.

The statutory surplus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve are non-
distributable and the transfer to these reserves is determined by the
board of directors of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary surplus reserve can be used to
expand the existing operations of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserves represent enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund.
These reserves are non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves
are determined by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Other reserves can be used to
make up for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

The Group irrevocably elected to designate certain investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI and the FVTOCI reserve is related to the gains
or losses arising from the changes in fair value of the designated equity
investments recognised in other comprehensive income.

GEX

(@)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z —F - — 41+ A =+—HI F)F

2022 2021
—E__ —EF - —4F

—_—

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES & & & &

Profit before tax B 51 s £ 2,714,979 5,634,887
Adjustments for: FE% :
Share of results of associates 7 {hE%& N &) E4& 5,996 (19,007)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - #82 & R &I E 1,813,899 1,638,067
Depreciation of right-of-use assets # AL ETE 65,591 60,845
Depreciation of investment properties & & ¥4 E 4,878 4,633
Amortisation of intangible assets & E i &5 56,211 56,211
(Reversal of) allowance for inventories 17§ (%@l ) & & (109,466) 132,374
Impairment loss under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
REREEBREXAGENRERSRE - MKREE 10,570 5,182
Gain on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net
MESRTAARBEEBRINEFE (30,292) (67,097)
Loss on fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
BRARBEFABRNEREEAABEEEHNEE 28,731 1,769
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% - 25 N R EEE 7,982 1,350
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —X B A RIS (55,200) =
Expense recognised in respect of share award scheme
SRR 1 B2 B 51 &l i FERR ) 32 243,399 188,278

Interest income from time deposits, short term fixed deposits, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances

EMFH - BRHEEBER S BHRITERRBITART EHMA (198,203) (97,112)
Interest income from debt instruments &% T & F S U A (895) (4,400)
Investment income from unlisted financial products at FVTPL

REEAREFABENIELTEMEMIIRERA (197,487) (302,638)
Finance costs &i& B 7 292,937 230,252
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) MNE &8 (Y ik) F 58 380,160 (81,518)
(Gain) loss on lease termination T &% 1 (Yzs) B8 (292) 935

P
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &2 —F = — 41+ —-H=+—HIFFF

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

2022

—E-=

RMB’000
ARBF T

2021
—E - —F
RMB’000
AREFT

LEEEPINKLLER RS 5,033,498 7,383,011
Decrease in inventories 17 & 4> 841,275 168,839
Decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayment

B 5 I E h FE WK IE & TR R IER 368,637 833,615
Increase in receivables at FVTOCI #£ 2 7 B 5T A H b 2 [ H s ) FE Y SR I8 N (1,076,879) =
Increase in amount due from a related party FEU — 2 BEE A £ ZXIH1E A0 (14,608) (327)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables & 5 K H fb &~ 21812 hn CGFi4>) 2,486,300 (942,589)
Increase in contract liabilities & 498 &IE 0 11,557 46,910
Increase in deferred income & ZE U A 3E N 110,355 117,053
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to related parties JEAT#8iE A TR IEIL N O 2) 3,058 62)
Cash generated from operations & & EEFT{SH & 7,763,193 7,606,450
Income taxes paid B 15 TSz E (385,897) (627,488)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES && ;ZB TSR & FH 7,377,296 6,978,962
INVESTING ACTIVITIES & &

Placement of pledged bank deposits 17/ 2 £ R 1717 5K (4,589) (16,508)
Release of pledged bank deposits ##% 2 IR TE R 13,106 1,654
Placement of short term fixed deposits 175 2 5F HiTE 3¢ (1,160,017) (1,540,339)
Release of short term fixed deposits #%&: 55 Hi & HiTE 3¢ 1,878,943 681,342
Placement of time deposits 77/ E Hi7F 3K (200,000) =
Purchases of unlisted financial products YgB&3E & R E (13,939,816)  (46,718,495)
Release of unlisted financial products & JE F T4 BiE & 11,908,486 46,923,800
Interest and investment income received & Y F 2 &IZEK A 421,109 329,143
Purchases of property, plant and equipment f& & ¥% - #22 LR & (2,604,193) (2,082,924)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - W RREPIEHIA 60,918 58,568
Acquisition of land use right U B + {55 FA 4 (25,771) (22,705)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

SRR  BBLREEINORE (443,241) (443,056)
Payment for intangible assets & E N (40,547) (40,252)
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI Wiz A BT AR 2 Al gz T A (18,000) (40,849)
Purchase of equity investments at FVTPL WEEIZ A /2 Bt A BB RERE - (20)
Investment in an associate 7 — B & Qa2 %8 (5,000) (106,040)
Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI

HERARBEFAEMEERRAER TAMSHIEA 108 -
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments at FVTPL

PERAR BT ABRMREREERIE - 31,062
Proceeds from disposal of a debt instrument at FVTPL

HE—BRANET ABRNEBTAMSRIE 40,418 32,427
Proceeds from disposal of fund investments at FVTPL

HERAABEFABRNESREMMSKIE 254,580 -
Repayment from debt instruments at amortised cost

REHEK AT ENEE T AENERKIE - 51,691
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — % M &2 & T3 58 29,622 =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEfTHRE T (3,833,884) (2,901,501)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EE

2022

—=E-=
RMB’000
ARMT T

2021
—E - —F
RMB’000
AREFTT

Interest paid 21~ Fl 8 (261,044) (222,125)
Dividends paid 2% & (1,058,671) (987,038)
New bank borrowings raised #Ti&R1TEE 8,151,846 5,557,947
Repayment of bank borrowings E&RITEE (8,550,127) (5,354,662)
Repayments of lease liabilities EZHEAE (69,232) (48,981)
Purchase of shares under share award scheme 1R 15 M {7 2€Eh=t 2 & B A% (7 (358,857) (212,183)
Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary from NCI
B IR ER W E —RHTB AR MREIMER (13,068) (1,470)
Capital contribution from NCI R IEIE IR E S IESHEE - 27,110
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EB T AR & R (2,159,153) (1,241,402)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REeRBRESEEEREMFE 1,384,259 2,836,059
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
R—A—BNBRERRELEEER 5,605,179 2,841,771
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E & % &) §) §/ & 43,756 (72,651)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
RT+-B=1t—HHNRELLKBELEEER

represented by cash and cash equivalents AIR& KIRE&EHEIER 275 7,033,194 5,605,179
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &2 —F = — 41+ —-H=+—HIFFF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21
September 2006 as an exempted company under the Companies
Act Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised,
formerly known as Companies Law) of the Cayman Islands and
its shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with effect from 15 June 2007. Its ultimate holding and
parent company is Sun Xu Limited, a private limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Wang Wenjian, also a non-executive director of the
Company. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of designing, researching and developing,
manufacturing and selling of optical and optical related products
and scientific instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

1. R E R

BT REME (KE) BRAA ([RQF])
R_BTERFLAZT—BHEHRSHESR
BHESEHEQAREF2R2E (—AR—FF
ZRRD - BERA RIER] - ULATTER QA
) MK AERE AR HBRHBE=F
ELFEANATARAREERBHERIMA
RAB LT &REERRSARRHEE
RATE - —RINREREZESEMKI
RABRDE > MERERALTREXE
L BRARBPEATES - ARAEE
3% =5 B S & 22 56 3t B 0 b B T 0 4R 3R
NEER R -

ARABH/—RAREZERAF - ARFRE
MEAR (FfE K@) EBRERF
MAEME  LERHELERCEIEHA
P on BT R (R 2R 5T o

HAEBBRRAARE [ARE] 27
ARBETRA/ARRIHNNEEE

REXSRE (RE) HRAT - 2022 5% (139)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z —F - — 41+ A =+—HI F)F

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June

2021
Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment —
Hong Kong Accounting Proceeds before Intended Use
Standard (“HKAS”) 16
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

p—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

e B wRME

Al ([&

(%)

OB T(B M R AE M2 H T RIS
EBE ISR E 2R

AEBWERFRAUNTEBMERKRE
MHVFR] RAIERT BB S E LR -
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BB SRR B B ZHI (B FE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15
and 24 of HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, for
leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
the relevant assets and liabilities separately. Temporary differences
on initial recognition of the relevant assets and liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Continueqd)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will recognise
a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with the
right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual reporting
period beginning on 1 January 2023. The cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendments will be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z —F - — 41+ A =+—HI F)F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

—

(144

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &2 —F = — 41+ —-H=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONS